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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

2008 was a year full of changes. For the year ended 31
December 2008 (the "Year”), the Group’s core business
achieved satisfactory results with turnover reaching a record
high of HK$8.33 billion, representing a growth of 53%;
gross profit reaching HK$223 million, representing a growth
of 56% or an increase of HK$80 million as compared to the
corresponding period last year; the operating profit of its
core steel business reaching HK$111 million, representing
an increase of HK$58.18 million or 110% as compared to
the corresponding period last year. Owing to the impairment
of goodwill of the Group’s associated company, “China
LotSynergy”, the Group’'s share of losses of associated
companies amounted to approximately HK$197 million and
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was
then in turn approximately HK$149 million. Excluding the
share of losses of the associated companies, profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company was HK$48.06 million.

Steel Business
International Steel Trading

In the first half of 2008, steel production was reduced
in major markets such as those in Europe and the North
America. It was attributable to the increase in prices and
shipping charges of upstream steel raw materials, in particular
the steel scraps and iron ore, caused by the depreciation of
US Dollars and the surge of oil price. At the same time, the
Chinese government implemented a series of measures such
as canceling export tax rebate and increasing custom duty
to restrict the export of steel products. These led to a global
trade imbalance in steel products and resulted in a new
historical high in global price recorded in August 2008 for
various steel raw materials and products. During the period
of high global steel prices, the Group strove to secure stable
resources supplies; placed great efforts on strengthening its
overseas market network, especially in developing markets in
Europe, the Middle East and the South Asia, and reinforced
its sales activities in China and traditional markets in adjacent
Asian countries. Therefore, by taking the advantage of the
upward trend of steel prices, the Group achieved a remarkable
result in the first half of 2008.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Business (continued)
International Steel Trading (continued)

At the end of the third quarter, the impact from the US
subprime mortgage crisis on the world economy gradually
emerged and led to the global financial tsunami. Great
operating losses were recorded among European and
American banks; the fall of Lehman Brothers led to the
collapse of confidence, credit crunch and shortage of capital
around the world. At the same time, the appreciation of
US dollar gave downward pressure on steel prices, and the
increasing steel production caused by surging steel prices
in the first half of 2008 led to over supply in steel products.
The abovementioned factors adversely affected the steel
market and resulted in the contraction of demand for steel
products and significant drop in iron ore prices. For example,
the prices of certain steel products even declined by 70%.
The demand of steel market was highly in recession, driving
the steel product buyers away from the market. Under these
circumstances, with the aim to mitigate the loss aroused by
declining steel prices, the Group continued to implement its
prudent and timely-adjusted business approach to manage
trading contracts with losses, decisively reduced inventory
level and cut loss. However, the daunting market environment
inevitably affected the Group’s overall results on this business
for the Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Business (continued)
International Steel Trading (continued)

Looking forward to 2009, the operating environment will
still be very difficult and challenging. Benefited from the
high production capacity, low product prices and the policy
on export tax rebate, China has been a net exporter in
steel products since 2006. However, the situation reversed
in 2009. Subsequent to the announcement of the Chinese
government’s RMB4-trillion stimulus package, steel mills and
trading houses expected that there would be an upward
trend in steel demand and they scaled down their inventory
level in the beginning of 2009 accordingly. It stimulated the
short-term domestic steel prices and was deviated from the
trend of contraction in demand and drop in prices in those
core overseas markets. Resulting from the surging domestic
steel prices, the steel export of China declined significantly
whilst import increased in the first quarter of 2009. The steel
mills and trading houses retained high level of inventory
and the temporary oversupply could not be wiped out and
a new wave of “inventory cut” is expected to be triggered
off. Nevertheless, the series of economy stimulation packages
from various countries are anticipated to resume the stability
of the global banking system and to improve the liquidity of
currency, and hence help recovery of economy. The economy
in China, as fuelled by the stimulus package on domestic
consumption and infrastructure, is relatively less affected by
the global economic downturn. As such the confidence of
the market has been reinstated and that effectively ensures
the smooth operation of the economy as a whole. The Group
believes that China will be the first country to recover from
the global economic turmoil and also expects that the steel
market will recover its growth momentum in mid-2009. The
Group will closely monitor the market changes, strengthen
risk management, reinforce global procurement and sales
network and capture business opportunities in a discreet
approach.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Business (continued)
Exploration of Mineral Resources

Exploration of mineral resources remains as the long-term
development strategy of the Group. However, due to the
global economic downturn as well as the decrease in various
commodity prices, the Group will adopt a very prudent
approach on mineral resources exploration and investment in
2009.

Steel Processing Business

The Group's two steel processing factories in Dongguan
saw a turnaround in operating results during the Year after
recording losses for two consecutive years. In recent years,
changes in the external business environment and government
policies have affected the corporate structure and export
form of foreign enterprises in the Pearl River Delta region, as
well as their ties with the domestic economy. Under intense
competition and accelerating industry consolidation, the
improved operating results of the abovementioned factories
were encouraging. During the Year, the Group implemented
effective cost control measures; strengthened internal
management and expanded RMB denominated domestic sales
to offset the decline in the export sales, and hence achieved
growth on turnover as well as gross margin. Nevertheless,
being affected by the daunting global economy, the export
sales orders decreased in the fourth quarter of 2008 and the
operating results for the Year were adversely affected.

It is expected that business environment for steel processing
will remain challenging in 2009. The Group therefore have
implemented more stringent measures on procurement,
inventory management and cost control in early 2009. The
Group will further consolidate the RMB denominated domestic
sales and export sales as a supplement to each other in order
to manage the anticipated problems and to maintain steady
operating results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Commercial Property Investment — Yangzhou Times
Square

Yangzhou Times Square, an integrated shopping mall invested
in and developed by the Group in China, continued to bring
stable rental income and return on management to the
Group. The management continuously enhanced the shopping
environment, adjusted the retailer profile, upgraded brand
names, marketing services and management services. As a
result, the impact from the global financial crisis on Yangzhou
Times Square was minimised and the mall maintained its
leading position in the region.

The tenancy agreements of preferential rent covering 8,000m?2
signed during the opening of the Yangzhou Times Square are
due to expire within one to two years. With the established
market position in the region of Yangzhou Times Square and
the increasing purchasing power of the local consumers, the
Group believes that there is ample room for rental increments
going onward.

The Group intends to hold such high quality RMB assets for
the long term to generate stable cash flow annually and
believes that it could achieve satisfactory capital return.

Listed Securities Investment — Lottery Business of
Associated Company

China LotSynergy Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8161) (“China
LotSynergy”), an associated company held by the Group since
its establishment was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2001. It is principally
engaged in the investment, project development and the
provision of technologies and equipment and consultancy
services in the public welfare lottery business and related
sectors in China. As at the balance sheet date, the Group
directly held 20.83% interest in China LotSynergy.

China LotSynergy aims at serving the welfare lottery business
in China and endeavors to promote the healthy and stable
development of China’s lottery industry. China LotSynergy,
a major player in China’s lottery industry, had introduced
international well-known strategic partners; and advanced
lottery technology, management expertise and lottery
terminals. The Group believes that with the continuous and
healthy development of China’s welfare lottery industry
and China LotSynergy’s progress on related projects, China
LotSynergy will bring a satisfactory return to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Listed Securities Investment — Lottery Business of
Associated Company (continued)

During the Year, China LotSynergy recorded a loss
attributable to equity holders of HK$930 million, which was
mainly attributable to a non-cash write-down on the value
of intangible assets, and hence the Group recorded a loss
of approximately HK$194 million in proportion to its equity
interest. The Group also recorded a book loss of HK$13.54
million from the repurchase of shares by China LotSynergy.
Such losses bring a material impact on the Group’s 2008
annual results.

For details of the results of China LotSynergy, please refer to its
Annual Report 2008 or visit its website www.chinalotsynergy.com.

Others

With the support from Shareholders, the Group successfully
completed new shares issue at the early of September 2008
and raised a total of approximately HK$300 million. Such
proceeds will be used to satisfy the capital requirement of the
Group's core steel business and lay a solid foundation for the
development of its natural mineral resources business.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In September 2008, the Company completed an open
offer of 2,000,751,226 shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.15 per share, receiving net proceeds of approximately
HK$290,000,000. The open offer broadened the Group’s
capital base and enhanced the capital structure of the Group.
As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s total equity increased
to HK$1,469,321,000 (2007: HK$1,251,968,000) and the
gearing ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings net of total cash
and cash equivalents to total equity, decreased to 0.19 (2007:
0.32).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$361,849,000 (2007:
HK$394,778,000) and the current ratio, as a ratio of current
assets to current liabilities, was 1.76 (2007: 1.29).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the total borrowings of the
Group were approximately HK$597,000,000 (2007:
HK$686,000,000) and their maturity profile was as follows:

RERHURMEREZ)

RZBENE+_A=1+—0 £E8E
K B 597,000,0000( T H4F B
#686,000,0007T) * EEZHALAT ¢

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

BREET BERETT

Within one year —F R 444 642
In the second year F_F 26 16
In the third to fifth year F-FEZFHEF 74 28
In the sixth to tenth year BRERFETF 53 -
597 686

The Group’s borrowings were principally denominated in US
Dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged
interest at prevailing market rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group considers that its operations are of minimal
exchange risk as its receipts, payments, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in US Dollar, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. Forward exchange contracts are used for
hedging purposes when required.

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had the following
outstanding corporate guarantees:

AEBMEREIZBUERT  ARBRBETRE
BB XNTBEXFE -

S EE R 3% B

AEBEZRA 2 - BERABEATER
X ARBHET - At - AEERRE
R 2 ZBNIMNERBRIGE - REFER
S REHISNES KIEE R AR -

LFEE

RZZZNFE+-_A=1+—8 KXEBEFAN
TORMEEE R AR

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Guarantee for general banking BEEARIRITRE
facilities granted to an associate EH 2R 21,730 21,730
Guarantee for general banking AREFRITHE
facilities granted to a supplier EH Z &R 23,400 -
Guarantees given to banks for AEEVMEBEEIRIBEER
mortgage facilities granted to mmERTTIEL 2 &R
the buyers of the Group's properties 2,107 3,200
47,237 24,930

I 10 Annual Report 2008 - iz |



C rommnssiiii..

Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had contingent liabilities
relating to Mainland China land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately HK$30,009,000 (2007: HK$28,989,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for as follows:

Machinery ]

B B AT am EE 0 AT

BRAR

RZEBEENF+_A=+—H8 x5 H
ERATEITHIZERNIRBENEE
30,009,000 L( == Z -4 : 128,989,000
JT) ©

BEkiE

E/\_g;ﬁ)\iﬂ—_ A=+—R KX&EEHFMA
ERERBEZEAAIE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
aWTT BETIT

16 48

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings with a
net book amount of approximately HK$113,982,000 (2007:
HK$116,623,000); (ii) certain motor vehicles and machinery
with a net book amount of approximately HK$5,905,000
(2007: HK$8,676,000); (iii) certain investment properties of
approximately HK$449,942,000 (2007: HK$91,224,000); and
(iv) certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of equity securities listed in Hong Kong with market value of
approximately HK$36,919,000 (2007: HK$48,301,000).

STAFF

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed 667 staff.
Staff remuneration packages are structured and reviewed
by reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Group also provides other staff benefits which include year
end double pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may also be
granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as
and when required.
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Mr. CHAN Shing, aged 53
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing
Director in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 18 years of experience
in international trading of metal, the processing and
manufacturing of related products, the management of
industrial enterprises, the investment in industrial and
commercial properties, the investment in marketable securities
and corporate planning and management. Mr. CHAN is also
an Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.
Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN.

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, aged 43
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy
General Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill
Resources Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export
bills operation for metal trading. He graduated from the
Finance Department of Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had
worked for banking sector and metal trading companies and
has over 15 years’ experience in international metal trading
and import/export bills operation.

Mr. YANG Da Wei, aged 56
Executive Director

Mr. YANG joined the Group in March 2001 and is an Executive
Director. Mr. YANG is a Senior Economist of the PRC. In mid-
1980’s, he was employed as the Head of Changzhou Tractor
Company, Jiangsu Province; the Chairman of Changzhou City
Labor Union and the Head of Liyang City, Jiangsu Province.
In mid 1990’s, he was elected as Routing Deputy Mayor of
Changzhou City Government, Jiangsu Province. He is currently
the Chairman of the Jiangsu Overseas Group Corp. and the
Chairman and President of Zhong Shan Company Limited,
the window company of the Jiangsu Province in Hong Kong.
He has got over 20 years of experience in corporate planning
and management, international trade, corporate finance and
project investment, international economic and technology
cooperation.
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Ms. LAU Ting, aged 52
Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in
1998. Ms. LAU has over 18 years of experience in business
development and strategic planning, project investment and
financial management. She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing.
Ms. LAU is also the Chairman and an Executive Director of
China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia, aged 42
Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive
Director. Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment
Division. She holds a bachelor’'s degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, aged 46
Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive
Director. He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Financial Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. YIN Mark, aged 51
Executive Director

Mr. YIN joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 1999. He graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Language University and worked for China National
Metals and Minerals Import and Export Corporation (renamed
China Minmetals Corporation) and European multinational
steel manufacturing and trading company. He is currently the
President of Burwill Steel Pipes Limited, and is in-charge of
the Group's steel processing division and responsible for its
daily management, business planning and development. He
has over 30 years of experience in international metal trading.
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Mr. CUI Shu Ming, aged 72
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. He graduated from People’s University of
China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China, Jiangsu
branch, the Executive Director of The National Commercial
Bank, Ltd. and the General Manager of its Hong Kong branch,
a Director and the Executive Vice President of The Ka Wah
Bank Ltd.. Mr. CUl is currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited and Yue Da
Mining Holdings Limited (listed companies in Hong Kong).
He has over 40 years’' experience in international finance and
corporate planning and management.

Mr. MIAO Gengshu, aged 67
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. MIAO joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in December 2008. Mr. MIAQO, a senior economist,
graduated from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics
with major in economics and trade. He is currently the
president of China Council for International Investment
Promotion, the chairman of China National Foreign Trade
Transportation (Group) Corporation, a supervisor of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited, the chairman
representing the Chinese side in the Sino-Brazil Business
Council and a vice chairman of China International Trade
Society. Mr. MIAO was a member of the 10th National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC") and a member of the Foreign Affairs
Committee of the CPPCC. He was the president of China
Minmetals Corporation, the general manager of Shanghai
Metals & Minerals Import & Export Company and a deputy
director general of Shanghai Foreign Economics & Trade
Commission.
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Mr. HUANG Shenglan, aged 57
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was
an executive director and the deputy governor of China
Everbright Bank, Head Office and was an executive director
and the general manager of China Everbright Technology
Limited. Mr. HUANG holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong
Normal University and in International Economics from
Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law from Xiamen University and in Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, USA. Mr. HUANG is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited and
Chongging Road & Bridge Co. Ltd.

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, aged 63
Non-Executive Director

Mr. SZE was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in 2000. Mr. SZE has over 30 years of experience
in the financial and securities field. He graduated with a
Master of Laws (LLM) Degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is currently Member of the Disciplinary Appeals
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Member of the Market Misconduct Tribunal and Member
of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal. He was a
former Council Member, Member of the Main Board Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
Member of the Cash Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited. Mr. SZE is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of GOME Electrical Appliances Holding
Limited, Greentown China Holdings Limited, Harbour Centre
Development Limited, C Y Foundation Group Limited and
Walker Group Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. SZE is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors Limited.
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The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
presents to the shareholders their report together with the
audited financial statements of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 47.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the balance sheets on
pages 45 and 46.

The Group’s cash flows are set out in the consolidated cash
flow statement on pages 50 and 51.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are international steel
trading, warehousing and distribution, steel manufacturing
and processing, and property development and investment.
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and operating profit by
business and geographical segments for the year are set out
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five major
customers combined is less than 30%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the above suppliers or customers at any time during
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held by the Group for investment
as at 31 December 2008 are set out on page 143.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2008 are set out in notes 9 and
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and European Euro. As at 31
December 2008, around 77% of the Group's bank loans were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank
loans bear interest at prevailing market rates.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to
HK$141,709,000 (2007: HK$139,665,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction
against the granting of such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company
repurchased a total of 600,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in
the share capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
general mandates granted by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2007, details of which were
as follows:

Bx %

KRATBARAFE 2 EBERFATREGRE
W ERERMFE17 ©

foti i

KEFEENFEBZEDBERFIRGRE T B R
RMIFE18 ©

] 53 I ik O

W-ZEENE+-A=1+—0 KRBRAHE
—NN\—FREVEFTE - AR DR T
% B8 2 45 A 78 141,709,000 L ( — 2 Z +
& #1139,665,0007T) °

BRiFEERER

BREXRHRHRNEBLIBEEY LT
Rl AABZzERRMABTTERE HZ S
FHEHIRTE ©

BE - HEXROA LR LHES

BHE-_ZSENFE+-_A=+—HIFER
ARRBER-_ZEZFRA -+ /N\BET
ZREBEFAS FERERE TESELRY
Z—RBERE REBHEARIHERAR
([T BRERMERAESKITTER
600,0000% * FIBEWT

Total

Number of Price per share consideration

shares BRI EE (before

Month/Year repurchased Lowest Highest expenses)
RE#RES

R/% MO A RIE BS (FKetFA%)
HK$ HKS$ HK$

BT BT BT

1/2008 600,000 0.61 0.61 366,000

I 18 Annual Report 2008 - iz 1N



2} ; -

Report of Directors EE S

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES (continued)

All shares repurchased were cancelled subsequently and
accordingly the Company’s issued share capital was reduced
by the nominal value of these shares. The repurchase was
effected for the benefit of the shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net assets and earnings per share of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2008.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
at the 2002 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2002, details of which are set out as follows:

() Summary of terms of the Scheme
(i) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
to Participants (as stated in paragraph (ii)) to
contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group.

(i)~ Participants

Any person being an employee, officer, buying
agent, selling agent, consultant, sales representative
or marketing representative of, or supplier or
provider of goods or services to, the Group,
including any executive or non-executive director of
the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

() Summary of terms of the Scheme (continued)

(ii)  Maximum number of shares

(iv)

(v)

The limit on the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group must not exceed 30 per cent. of the
number of issued shares from time to time. The
total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme as at the date of this report is 94,164,430
shares, representing approximately 3.03 per cent. of
the issued share capital of the Company as of that
date.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant in any
12-month period up to and including the proposed
date of grant for such options would exceed 1 per
cent. of the number of shares in issue as at the
proposed date of grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period of
not exceeding 10 years to be notified by the Board
to the grantee, such period to commence on the
date of grant or such later date as the Board may
determine and expiring on the last day of the said
period. Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its
discretion, prescribe a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
() Summary of terms of the Scheme (continued)

(vi) Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

(vii) Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the
options to be granted under the Scheme will be
a price determined by the Board and notified to
a Participant at the time the grant of the options
is made to (and subject to acceptance by) the
Participant and will be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the option,
which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

(viii) The life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 June 2002, after
which period no further options will be granted or
accepted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

() No options had been granted, exercised nor cancelled
since the adoption of the Scheme on 6 June 2002.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Da Wei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CUI Shu Ming
Mr. MIAO Gengshu
— appointed on 8 December 2008
Mr. HUANG Shenglan
Mr. SONG Yufang
— resigned on 18 September 2008

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael

In accordance with bye-laws 85 & 92 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Ms. LAU Ting, Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia, Mr.
MIAO Gengshu and Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael shall retire
from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out on pages 12 to 15.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company (including
those interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have interests and short positions under the
provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

(A) The Company

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares

HERRSR ARRHHE percentage
interest in
the Company’s
Personal Family Corporate issued share
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total capital
HEFLT
BRTRE
EEptE EAES REHG ATHE # Bkt
CHAN Shing 106,398,521(L) 104,042,601(L) 1,729,266,037(L) 1,939,707,159(L) 62.32%(L)
i) (Note 1) 1,406,427,301() 1,406,427,301(S) 45.19%(S)
(Hiit1) (Notes 2 & 3) (Note 3)
(Hit23) (H7z23)
SIT Hoi Tung 4,413,869(L) - - 4,413,869(L) 0.14%(L)
AR
LAU Ting 104,042,601(L) 106,398,521(L) 1,729,266,037(L) 1,939,707,159(L) 62.32%(L)
2z (Note 4) 1,406,427,301() 1,406,427,301(9) 45.19%(S)
(Hizt4) (Notes 2 & 3) (Note 3)
Mzz2R3) (Wit3)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 21,725,226(L) 110,000(L) 7,104,000(L) 28,939,226(L) 0.93%(L)
E( (Note 5)
(it5)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

(A) The Company (continued)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr.
CHAN Shing.

2. 1,290,961,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory
Add"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (a
company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and
Ms. LAU Ting). 226,403,853 shares were held by Hang Sing
Overseas Limited (“Hang Sing”) which is owned as to 51%
by Orient Strength Limited (“Orient Strength”), a company
which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.
211,900,848 shares were held by Strong Purpose Corporation
(“Strong Purpose”), a company which is wholly-owned by Mr.
CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.

3. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU
Ting are deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures
referred to the same shares.

4. These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of
Ms. LAU Ting.

5. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants
Limited (“Focus Cheer”), a company which is wholly-owned by
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

6.  The letter “L" denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

EFRTHERMNEMG - HEAKGRE
SENEAHEGRRE(Z)

B3 R ARG R (EZ)

(A) FRF(E)

Bt -

1.

hE#am BB TES - LT AR
WSR2

1,290,961,336 % 1 (R 4 5 4 & 2 18 &
+ 2 & ¥ B 1 Favor King Limited & i
H 2% %A 2 A 7 Glory Add Limited
([ Glory Add | ) ¥ & - 226,403,853 f%
i Hang Sing Overseas Limited ( [ Hang
Sing ] ) ¥ & - Orient Strength Limited
([ Orient Strength |) #§ /& Hang Sing 51%
o MRS EE R L TRIZERE
Orient Strength © 211,900,848 3% Ff Strong
Purpose Corporation([ Strong Purpose |) ¥
B BRI A K BiE 22+ 2 B #E A Strong

Purpose °

FR BRI ST A R BIis e+ 2 i R AR
bR - BFTSI B T IR RIAIAR ) o
ISR RmARINEERESR - RNEERE
1Bzt 2B -
7,104,000k R EMM L L2 EEE 2 A
AJFocus Cheer Consultants Limited ([ Focus

Cheer )#5 %5 °

[LIRTAR  [SIRTHKA -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND EERITHESNER HEBRORE
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES #EhiBENEARKE (&)
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued) B RIEERAEE ()

(B) Associated Corporation — China LotSynergy Holdings (B) & 2 &l — China LotSynergy Holdings

Limited (“China LotSynergy”) Limited (EF1ER G R 2 7] ) ([ R 1
&)
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares Approximate
HERRSR ARRHBAE percentage
interest in
the issued
share capital
Personal Family Corporate of China
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total LotSynergy
HisETRR
BRITRE
EERS EAfER REHER LATHR ay Bl
CHAN Shing 343,807,092(L) 215,555,212(L) 1,629,617,232(L) 2,188,979,536(L) 29.57%(L)
53 (Note 1) (Note 2) 23,093,192(5) 23,093,192(5) 0.31%(S)
(1) (H:22) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Hit3%4) (Hit4)
SIT Hoi Tung 11,115,276(L) - - 11,115,276(L) 0.15%(L)
BER
LAU Ting 215,555,212(L) 343,807,092(L) 1,629,617,232(L) 2,188,979,536(L) 29.57%(L)
2 (Note 1) (Note 5) 23,093,192(9) 23,093,192(9) 0.31%(S)
(1) (H/its) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Hi23%4) (Hz24)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 8,454,440(L) 22,000(L) 1,020,800(L) 9,497,240(L) 0.13%(L)
E(i (Note 6)
(Hiite)
KWOK Wai Lam 8,800,000(L) - - 8,800,000(L) 0.12%(L)
HER
YIN Mark 4,067,600(L) - - 4,067,600(L) 0.05%(L)
FiI
HUANG Shenglan 6,400,000(L) - - 6,400,000(L) 0.09%(L)
HBE (Note 1)
(1)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

(B) Associated Corporation — China LotSynergy (continued)

Notes:

1.

Among these interests, 2,400,000 underlying shares were
share options.

These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr.
CHAN Shing.

45,280,768 shares were held by Hang Sing which is owned as
to 51% by Orient Strength, a company which is wholly-owned
by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. 42,380,168 shares
were held by Strong Purpose, a company which is wholly-
owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. 1,535,324,296
shares were held directly by the Company and 6,632,000
shares were held by Hillot Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Burwill HK Portfolio Limited which is in turn wholly-owned
by the Company.

As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU
Ting are deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures
referred to the same shares.

These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of
Ms. LAU Ting.

These shares were owned by Focus Cheer, a company which is
wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

The letter “L" denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had,
or were deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short

positions

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the

meaning
recorded

of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
in the register kept by the Company under Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

EFRTHERMNEMG - HEAKGRE
SENEAHEGRRE(Z)

B3 R ARG R (EZ)
(B) BELA]—FEFER ()
Bt -

1. IEEZSE A 2,400,000/% 48 B8 A% 1 BB FE A
1 o

2. WERGHIELLIER - IEZLRER
WA B -

3. 45,280,768 % fi Hang Sing#% &  Orient
Strength ¥ % Hang Sing 51% #£ & © i
BR  5t A K Bl §= % 1 Bl & & #E A Orient
Strength ° 42,380,168%EHStrong Purpose
BAE BREERBIELTE2ERB
Strong Purpose ° 1,535,324,296 % i 7&K
NAlHERFE ° 6,632,000 % B Burwil
HK Portfolio Limited 2 & # A 2 A A Hillot
Limited# 8 - 22 & A & & % H Burwill
HK Portfolio Limited ©

4. HRBREEERBIEZLZ BEFIRAK
e - MPRSIBIF IR -

5. WERDHMBRMELEER - REELERE
Bz B -

6. WEROMHBEMMLET2EREFLAA
Focus Cheer## A

7. TURTRER  [SIRTAR -

BREXAEEEN R-TTN\F+_HA
=t+—H  ARAZEFHTHREAHBER
ARRREEABERR(ERREFMYE
fERBIFEXVER) 2 Bt ~ R D RIEHE T
BRRRE S LB GROIRR SEE TR
MR R R IRIRE 7 N B 555 352 1%
FfEBREFCECMA - HAMKE EH
RAEFETEFIHNFETABAAR
G ¥
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FERFERBMHREBEM DRSS
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES BRkE

As at 31 December 2008, according to the register required RZZEZENF+-_A=+—HB  RBEARQF
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, IRRBEE L EEAE3I36IEFTIRTE AT ETE
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief ZERMATE C LA (RRREERITH
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions HBERIN) AR B AD M AB R (D P HE A 1

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company: mRAR
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares B RIERRGER
Approximate
percentage
Number of interest in
ordinary shares/ the Company’s
Nature of underlying issued share
Name of shareholder interest shares capital Note
Eol 3/
1 BERTERF
ERRE Eanuy HRARR DB E Bifk Hist
Favor King Limited Corporate 1,290,961,336(L) 41.48% 1
NG]| 1,290,961,336(S) 41.48%
Hang Sing Beneficiary 226,403,853(L) 7.27% 2
B 115,465,965(S) 3.71%
Orient Strength Corporate 226,403,853(L) 7.27% 2
NG 115,465,965(S) 3.71%
Zhong Shan Company Limited Corporate 226,403,853(L) 7.27% 2
EILFRAF NS 115,465,965(S) 3.71%
Superior Quality Assets Limited Corporate 226,403,853(L) 7.27% 2
NG 115,465,965(S) 3.71%
Strong Purpose Beneficiary 211,900,848(L) 6.81% 3
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-
owned by Favor King Limited. Favor King Limited is owned as to
50% by Mr. CHAN Shing and as to 50% by Ms. LAU Ting.

2. 51% of the issued share capital of Hang Sing was owned by Orient
Strength, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting, and 49% of the issued share capital of Hang
Sing was owned by Superior Quality Assets Limited, a company
which is wholly-owned by Zhong Shan Company Limited. Zhong
Shan Company Limited was wholly-owned by the Jiangsu Provincial
People’s Government of the PRC. These 226,403,853 shares held by
Hang Sing formed part of the interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms.
LAU Ting as disclosed herein.

3. These interests were held by Strong Purpose, a company which is
wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting, formed part
of the interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting as disclosed
herein.

4. The letter “L” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

OPEN OFFER

On 20 June 2008, the board of Directors of the Company
announced to propose to raise approximately HK$300 million,
by issuing up to 2,000,751,226 offer shares of HK$0.10 each
in the share capital of the Company (the “Offer Shares”) at
a subscription price of HK$0.15 per Offer Share by way of
an open offer, in the proportion of eighteen Offer Shares
to ten shares held on the record date and payable in full on
acceptance (the “Open Offer”).

FERRREGRERKRGRERE
oRRB(E)

B3 R ARG R (EZ)

wa

1. M A Favor King Limited 2 B A 2 A )
Glory Add# & ° Favor King Limited %> 5l £ 58 4%
FERBELTEEEAES0%ER ©

2. Hang SingZ51% B2 81T IR 4N Th | B4k ot 42 2 2
B4+ 2 & %A 2 Orient StrengthFTH#EA + BN
Hang Sing.Z 49% B2 & 1TAR AN Al R & L AR A A
% & # A Z Superior Quality Assets Limited FfT
B BEBUBRARNFEIHEARKBE2EH
A Z/AF] ° Hang Sing#$A.2226,403,853[% T4
ST RIAR BRI S A R BlfE 2 Wik 2 — B

e

3. UWERTAERREEREELZLT2EREY
Strong PurposeF#EE » AARSCATH Bl 2 B8 PR
FERBIEL T2 w2 —E o

4. [LIRREE  [SIRTRAR ©

BREXFABEEEN R-TZENF+_H
=t+—8  BEEFAL(RRAREEHTH
HERR SN RA R B D R ABRER D R B 1
BEOR R RENIRIRE 5 N B R F 33614
FIFEMELCMA - &/ REEKEEMR
BEBETRAHENS%A s - AR
EABEAT  AREAEEEFNEMBKER
BMBRRA S LR Rr MR o

RZZEZENFENA-+H ARBEZEBRA
HEAERAFREE RN ABUSE T
A% A% 17 AT D + )\ A% B IR &9 LE ) 3 2B A
ZINB B BEE  UEFREBEERD0.158
TTHREEE » RARRIBRAER0.10BTLH
2175 %2,000,751,226 A% 35 & B ([ B E /%
?]) BEHZEET(RFABE]) -
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OPEN OFFER (continued)

Pursuant to an underwriting agreement dated 19 June 2008
(the "Agreement”) and a supplemental agreement to the
Agreement dated 9 July 2008 (together, the “Underwriting
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Glory
Add Limited (“Glory Add” or the “Underwriter”), a company
indirectly owned in equal share by Mr. Chan Shing and Ms.
Lau Ting (both are Executive Directors of the Company), the
Underwriter had conditionally agreed to underwrite, on a fully
underwritten basis, the Offer Shares (excluding those to be
taken up by Mr. Chan and Ms. Lau pursuant to the Irrevocable
Undertaking dated 19 June 2008 and the supplemental
deed to the Irrevocable Undertaking dated 9 July 2008) not
subscribed by the qualifying shareholders subject to the
terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement. The
maximum number of Offer Shares to be underwritten by
Glory Add under the Underwriting Agreement amounted to
1,865,467,648 Offer Shares.

The net proceeds from the Open Offer were approximately
HK$290 million. The Directors used approximately HK$250
million of the net proceeds for general working capital for,
and expansion and development of, the existing steel trading
business of the Group and plan to use the balance of the net
proceeds for the purposes of future investments in natural
mineral resources and related business.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 14
August 2008, the ordinary resolutions approving the Open
Offer and the absence of arrangements for excess application
for the Offer Shares and the Underwriting Agreement as
the alternative arrangement in respect of the untaken Offer
Shares and the whitewash waiver were duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company by way of poll.

Completion of the Open Offer took place on 9 September
2008 and accordingly, 2,000,751,226 Offer Shares were
allotted and issued and certificates for the Offer Shares were
duly dispatched to those qualifying shareholders who had
validly applied and paid for the Offer Shares on 11 September
2008. Dealings in the Offer Shares commenced on 16
September 2008.

Details of the Open Offer are set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 18 August 2008 and the announcement of
the Company dated 10 September 2008.

DRARE (&)

RIEAR B EARRNITE BRI E KB
122+ [ 2 & £ EHAE 2 Glory Add Limited
([ Glory AddJsk[ B & ) D RIR = N\F
NATHLBEZZEENFLANLBEZE
e ([ Zne ) kzhacmrxika (58
[BiEH#%])  BHEEREEHERENIERK
EEBETILRE BB ERESERBE
RENBERDUKIEBHA-_ZTTNEA
+THABZ A HEAZEBHA-STNSF
T ANBZ AR HEAEATRE - BHE
SR B BRI BRI o Glory Add
BEBHEDGZBEHENEERNDRLHE A
1,865,467, 6484 L EJL(D ©

NHABREMGSHEFEOR_BATERE
T EERAEREFETHN_RATER
TRE-REEES  ARREWNEESE
BEER - M ATERIRFRBHAEAIER
KERENRARBEE R MARREER -

RZZZNFN\ATEBARTZAREME
FRIAE L EEARRBIBRRNKRSE

RTABBEBRERAMEIREE RER
BREINPFRERDOZE T AR B WHEE
BTEZRNEERMONERZ Y RIAERT
R o

AABEER BTN NFNLANBTK - &
I RZZFZENFLA+—H » AARIERE
I %£172,000,751,226 % B E /%5 - WA B K
RBTE X NEERNRBERCEERBRRE
FEBEERMKRE - HERMRZZZZNFE
NATREFRBRES -

AAEEFBEENBEHPR-_ZTTNF/\A
TNRAZARRHBERERLRARS-TTN
FNATHZARBRMEA -
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INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$180,000,000 divided into 1,800,000,000 shares to
HK$380,000,000 divided into 3,800,000,000 shares, which
was passed as an ordinary resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 14
August 2008.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme and the Open Offer of
the Company disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company with no specific
term of office or for an initial term of two years (subject to
individual contract) from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter, until terminated by not less than one to
six months (subject to individual contract) notice in writing
served by either party on the other. The terms of office of
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors are the period up to their retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors offering
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note
15 of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the
Company’s Directors or members of its management had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIEERE

RZZEENFNA+HEBARRRKRERR
AREE ARRBREBBLTBEAZRIU
B AR R A E RS B 78 180,000,000
JT 9 /% 1,800,000,000 A% A% {7 18 o0 = 7 #
380,000,0007T% 43,800,000,000/% 8% {7

Rk RRFZRH

BRARRBEREFE R AREEN  AFR
ARF] - HERAT - KEMBRARHRFR
8RR EAEHE LB EARRERR
REEA R A S E MRS 2 Bl A FEIRA

o
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ARRBERNITEFTHE BARBRILRES
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HmE(RFEEREH) ERE—EEN
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and
the employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 144.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 1 March 2005, Fordwell Investment Limited (“Fordwell”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate
of financial institutions whereby Fordwell was granted a 3-year
transferable term loan facility of up to US$39,000,000 (the
“Facility”). The Facility Agreement included an undertaking on
procuring that Mr. Chan Shing, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, and Ms. Lau Ting, the spouse of
Mr. Chan Shing and an Executive Director of the Company,
should remain as the combined single largest shareholder of
the Company and own (directly or indirectly) in the aggregate
30% or more of the ordinary issued shares of the Company at
all times during the term of the Facility Agreement. A breach
of such undertaking would constitute an event of default
under the Facility, upon the occurrence of which all amounts
outstanding and owing under the Facility may become
immediately due and payable.

The Facility was fully repaid in April 2008 and the above
specific performance obligation ceased to exist thereafter.

REEALER] L FA T EBRNRFES
2T BRANER TR REEAL

& RSB HFEF

AEBRRENTEFB M AFERNGE
BHRXRZEEERNRENER  HRGEATH
&R EE24 -

IFMGRE

AEBEBRERNBYRFEZRE  EERA
EMETIHNFE 1445 -

BB EHRAE13. 211G Z R

R_ZEZTRF=A—HB ARAZ2ENE
NAEBRBREARAA([REEKRE]) A
MemERrER B ([ERmE])
Bt BRRERG-EAN=FHRE
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B+ (AR E B EER hE
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises the three Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. MIAO Gengshu and Mr.
HUANG Shenglan. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC"”) were auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2005.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, who was appointed as auditors of
the Company by the Company in 2006 upon the resignation
of PwC, will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
is an essential element in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, business partners and
the community as a whole and also the performance of the
Group. The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
will review the corporate governance structure and practices
from time to time and shall make necessary arrangements to
ensure business activities and decision making processes are
made in a proper and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2008, except for the
deviations as disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Sit Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Yang Da Wei

Ms. Lau Ting

Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. Kwok Wai Lam

Mr. Yin Mark
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Shu Ming

Mr. Miao Gengshu (appointed on 8 December 2008)
Mr. Huang Shenglan

Mr. Song Yufang (resigned on 18 September 2008)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael

Following the resignation of Mr. Song Yufang as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 18 September 2008, the Company temporarily
having only two Independent Non-Executive Directors was
not compliant with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. On 8
December 2008, the Company appointed Mr. Miao Gengshu
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised eleven
Directors, seven of whom are Executive Directors (including
the Chairman), three of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one of whom is Non-Executive Director. Details
of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of
this annual report. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal actions against the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.
Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The day-to-day
operations of the Company is delegated to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of
the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company is independent in character
and judgement. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-executive Director a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group’s business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All
regular board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board
to make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board except that Ms. Lau Ting is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Shing.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of directors entitled
to be present. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group, which did not fully comply with
the relevant Code provision. Board meetings will be held on
other occasions when board decisions are required.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EERE)

During the year under review, sixteen board meetings REERN EERESRT+N2H(BER
(including two regular board meetings) were held. Details of WTEHIEE) c BE Y BB ¢
the attendance of the Directors are as follows:—

Directors’ Attendance

EEHEXRE

Executive Directors

MITES

Mr. Chan Shing (Chairman and Managing Director) 14/16
BRYRSE A (LB EFAGAEIE)

Mr. Sit Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager) 16/16
B RS (FI#BAETE)

Mr. Yang Da Wei 3/16
BRESE

Ms. Lau Ting 12/16
Bt

Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia 15/16

=i+

Mr. Kwok Wai Lam 16/16
BRI E

Mr. Yin Mark 9/16
FaT A

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIUFRITESE

Mr. Cui Shu Ming 4/16
EERLE
Mr. Miao Gengshu 0/0
HHELE
Mr. Huang Shenglan 5/16
BEBELLE
Mr. Song Yufang 3/14
REFFTE

Non-Executive Director
ERMTES

Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael 5/16
£ EFIEE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer were
not performed by separate individuals as is stipulated in Code
provision A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company, Mr. Chan Shing, currently assumes the role of the
chairman and also the chief executive officer responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies of and organising the implementation structure for
the Company and also managing the Group's overall business
operations. Given the nature of the Group’s businesses which
require considerable market expertise, the Board believed
that the vesting of the two roles provides the Group with
stable and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
planning and implementation of long term business strategies.
The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of the
structure to balance the power and authority of the Board
and the management.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term as is stipulated in Code provision
A.4.1, but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The
Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws to retire
by rotation at least once every three years. However, in
accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director. The Board will ensure the
retirement of each Director, other than the one who holds
the office as Chairman or Managing Director, by rotation at
least once every three years in order to comply with Code
provisions. The Chairman will not be subject to retirement by
rotation as is stipulated in Code provision A.4.2, as the Board
considered that the continuity of office of the Chairman
provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is
of great importance to the smooth operations of the Group.
Ms. Lau Ting, Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia, Mr. Miao Gengshu
and Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael are subject to retirement
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three members, Mr. Cui
Shu Ming, Mr. Huang Shenglan and Mr. Sit Hoi Tung. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Cui Shu
Ming. The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a
year to determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors
and the senior management, and consider and review the
terms of service contracts of the Directors and the senior
management.

In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
abilities, performance and contribution of the Directors to
the Group, the performance and profitability of the Group,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the prevailing
market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held
during the year ended 31 December 2008. Details of the
attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings are as
follows:

Mr. Cui Shu Ming (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
EEREE(FHESEFE)

Mr. Huang Shenglan

mEBESE

Mr. Sit Hoi Tung

EOBRSTAE

FHERE

KRR ZZEERNFNLA+TZHKIZEER
ERXEEGHENFNEZES  FTNEES
RAEZHLE  EBELERBEESRLE
—uKEMEK - FINEZES TR AEZHL
ko FHNEEETFRIVBIT - REBUE
TEELRSEEEAE ZHIBER REEM
EHNEFELRSEEEABRIEAHZIER -

EEBTEFEHME  FHZEeEETEZ A
Az PInESHOEELERY &%
ZREN  REALBEEZER  SEZXE
RN BMES - ARERFMELE - B8
SRR, BEERRERRENM S 2 7]
THESEREMET -

RZZEZENF+ZRA=+—HILEFER ¥
MEESLRITMAER v HEEeE
&< ME R BT

Members’ Attendance
EEHERSE
2/2

2/2

2/2
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a director, and approving and terminating
the appointment of a director. During the year under review,
the Company had not established a nomination committee
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties. The Chairman is mainly responsible
for identifying suitable candidates for members of the Board
when there is a vacancy or an additional director is considered
necessary. The Chairman will propose the appointment of
such candidates to the Board for consideration and the Board
will review the qualifications of the relevant candidates for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his
qualifications, experience and background.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Board
regarding the resignation of Mr. Song Yufang as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and the appointment of
Mr. Miao Gengshu as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company were held. Details of the attendance of the
meetings are as follows:

Executive Directors

MTESE

Mr. Chan Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
BRI SE A (L /EREFRATE)

Mr. Sit Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)
BRI (BIREASHE)

Mr. Yang Da Wei

BRESLE

Ms. Lau Ting

£l

Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia

Eim et

Mr. Kwok Wai Lam

BERLE

Mr. Yin Mark

FUL A

EFREA

EZRARERLEEFAEAENLIE
MEILEEREEE - RFER - ARAA
ARECILAE E AR HE S E B N B SR
BNREERES IRIBEAERNEERFA
ERIABSFTERERESH  WEABEAE
MAEZR - ERBAEZREZRTEH
ANE BERBREREAZERE  &£RhE
SEHAMARZER  RERTEANMA
REE -

FER - EERRRES BB I
FEFREAEHBAEABYERTE
£ OBETRREH - B2 RS
o -

Directors’ Attendance

EEHEXRB

2/2
2/2
0/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

2/2
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIUFMGTESE

Mr. Cui Shu Ming
EERLE

Mr. Miao Gengshu#
HE#E L

Mr. Huang Shenglan
Mr. Song Yufang*
REFEE

Non-Executive Director

FRITES

Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael
PEFLE

# Mr. Song Yufang resigned and Mr. Miao Gengshu was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 18 September 2008 and 8 December 2008 respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides
the Board with advice and recommendations. As at the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, Mr. Cui Shu Ming, Mr. Miao Gengshu and Mr.
Huang Shenglan. All of them are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Cui
Shu Ming. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting and
financial management in the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s functions include:

e to review and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them; and

e to review financial and internal controls, accounting
policies and practices with management, internal and
external auditors.

EFEAE)

Directors’ Attendance
EFHEXRE

0/2
0/0
0/2

0/0

0/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
under review, one of which was attended by the external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

Mr. Cui Shu Ming EERTE
Mr. Miao Gengshu* EME ST
Mr. Huang Shenglan EBESAE
Mr. Song Yufang* REF A

* Mr. Song Yufang resigned and Mr. Miao Gengshu was appointed as
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company with effect from
18 September 2008 and 8 December 2008 respectively.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee has been revised on 17 April 2009 in
accordance with the recent amendments to the Listing Rules
and has been posted on the Company’s website and is made
available on request.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group had
engaged the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng, to provide the following services and their fees
charged are set out as below:

Types of Services BRI %8R

Audit for the Group SEE

Non-audit services FEREETIRTE

— Professional services on acting — R E A2
as reporting accountants HERB

FRERE ()

BERZEERNFEARBITRAGH  IME
REMBEEEAMEBAELERES —RE
% BRERBEgR L MFELEFENT

Members’ Attendance

ERHEXRB

2/2
0/0
2/2
0/2

* REFEEREHEEEDHIN-_FTTNFNA
TNARBEMR-_ZZN\EF+_ANREZER
ARARIBZREGERE -

BEVZESCREREEH R RAKER
Rz estBERLEH - LARERET - AEREE
LPBEABEE - BHE_FTTNF+ A
=T RLEFEZEBRRMBRRCLEX
ZEEEMN BERZBEGCHERECK
ZZAFOA+EBRE ETRAZFERT
EH TERIYEHR AR B Z WA ARMAT IR
ERIEHAER]

ZBETEN &

BHE_ZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE &
BZRREASESNEZBEBRE S EL
REATIR - SWWERERWT -

Fee charged
for the year ended
31 December

WREH
BE+_A=1+—HLFE
2008 2007
HK$ HK$
BT AT
880,000 820,000
200,000 -
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are
set out on pages 43 and 44.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal controls system of
the Group.

The internal controls system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, to identify and manage potential risk. The Board
is committed to implementing an effective and sound internal
control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the system of internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relations policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings
with institutional investors and analysts are conducted from
time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
shareholders timely. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The corporate website of the Company has provided a
communication platform via which the public and investor
community can access to up-to-date information regarding
the Group.

ESREBMEREZRE
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A ERES I
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}IIJ3 Bl # & 3 & F # 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
45 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

31/F, Gloucester Tower &5

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street SITE115%
Central BEHMES
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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Balance Sheets EEBEX
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZEENE+=-A=1+—H
Consolidated Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
wiF  B%TRE BETIT BT BETIT
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets FERDEE
Leasehold land and land HET R it
use rights F R 6 79,416 81,001 - —
Property, plant and equipment #)2 - #28 N &% 4E 7 99,258 105,210 - -
Investment properties WA 8 522,726 286,501 - -
Intangible assets EFEE 150 170 - -
Investments in subsidiaries WEBATIRE 9 - = 42,415 42,415
Due from subsidiaries iGN 9 - - 462,474 448,000
Investments in associates Bt SN RIRE 10 271,334 475,321 10,766 10,766
Available-for-sale financial Al E BT
assets BE 12 1,509 1,509 90 90
Other receivables HErElR 15 537 - - -
Deferred tax assets BLEHIBEE 20 20,054 10,722 = =
Total non-current assets BT EE 994,984 960,434 515,745 501,271
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 13 162,574 167,340 - -
Properties held for sale FEME - 31,611 = =
Financial assets at fair value RATEZEBER
through profit or loss SIEH Bt IS EE 14 40,195 48,610 1 1
Bills and accounts receivable FEUEIE [ FEUR IR TE 15 973,906 894,707 - -
Deposits, prepayments and Re BN
other receivables HEerER 15 127,863 134,679 432 248
Due from subsidiaries I IENGEIDEN 9 - = 637,716 457,028
Due from associates NI 10 2,527 4,032 - -
Taxation recoverable JERFHIA 139 = = =
Pledged bank deposits BHEARITER 16 = 750 = =
Other cash and bank HEvl& iR
balances S 16 361,849 394,028 765 834
Total current assets EREEE 1,669,053 1,675,757 638,914 458,111
Total assets HEE 2,664,037 2,636,191 1,154,659 959,382
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Balance Sheets EEAEBXR
R=ZZET

At 31 December 2008

Consolidated Company
=e NF
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
wiF  B%TE BT BT ST IT
EQUITY E€a
Capital and reserves AN
attributable to the #AE AN
Company'’s equity holders WA R i
Share capital fg A< 17 311,228 111,213 311,228 111,213
Other reserves HEHE 18 761,931 644,300 803,408 713,670
Retained profits REB AT 18 291,369 440,237 12,877 10,833
1,364,528 1,195,750 1,127,513 835,716
Minority interests DEIR RS 104,793 56,218 - =
Total equity arEss 1,469,321 1,251,968 1,127,513 835,716
LIABILITIES AR
Non-current liabilities ERBRE
Due to a subsidiary RHBAEIFIA 9 - = = 94,366
Borrowings B 19 153,423 44,376 - -
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIBEEE 20 91,122 42,552 = =
Total non-current liabilities BIFRBEE 244,545 86,928 - 94,366
Current liabilities mENEE
Borrowings B 19 443,849 642,030 - -
Due to subsidiaries U NGTE O 9 - = 24,962 27,152
Due to associates REGE DR HIE 10 24,301 24,906 = -
Bills and accounts payable FENZE K REIRIE 21 335,897 529,078 - —
Other payables and Hy EAIRIE R
accruals Bzt & A 125,841 100,998 2,184 2,148
Taxation payable FERT R IE 20,283 283 - =
Total current liabilities B E & 950,171 1,297,295 27,146 29,300
Total liabilities EEE 1,194,716 1,384,223 27,146 123,666
Total equity and liabilities #ESREE 2,664,037 2,636,191 1,154,659 959,382
Net current assets mEEERE 718,882 378,462 611,768 428,811
Total assets less current HEER
liabilities g 1h-K 1,713,866 1,338,896 1,127,513 930,082
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
PR 3% HES
Chairman Director
ES EZE

I 46 Annual Report 2008 4 iy 1N



© vormmnsn i,

Z'_L‘ (=N

Consolidated Income Statement 42 & Bz &

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE_ZZ \FE+-_A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KizE BT BT T
Sales HE 5 8,334,596 5,452,012
Cost of sales SHE A 23 (8,111,375) (5,308,779)
Gross profit EF 223,221 143,233
Other gains, net HE Wz g5 22 141,721 101,808
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER 23 (71,585) (46,710)
General and administrative expenses —f& M 1T E B 23 (77,810) (77,792)
Operating profit 48 25 = K| 215,547 120,539
Finance costs Bh & pk 2R 25 (54,007) (59,499)
Share of (losses)/profits of FriG Bt N7 (Ei8),/
associates ZH 10 (196,866) 30,211
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BE I (EE) BF (35,326) 91,251
Taxation FiI8 26 (69,577) 4,020
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(BE) &R (104,903) 95,271
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the Company AARERHEAA 27 (148,808) 86,307
Minority interests DA R RE S 43,905 8,964
(104,903) 95,271
(Loss)/Earnings per share for FRARRQRIEZEFE A
(loss)/profit attributable to the e (E18), BT
equity holders of the Company &% (E8) & F
during the year 28
— basic and diluted (restated) —HEARNEE(EY)) (8.50) HK centsi#{ll 7.70 HK centsi& il
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 42 & R E B X
+

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_TTN\F+_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
ARAlERFE AR
Share Other  Retained Minority
capital reserves profits interests Total
PHRE
RA  Huff#E RERFA g ok

Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
#at  A¥TT  RARTT  BBTT  BETR  B%TR

Balance at 1 January 2007 “TRt+FE-A-HEH 103,213 503,297 353,930 43,779 1,004,219
Currency translation differences ~ EMEH =% 18 - 24,196 - 3,655 27,851
Profit for the year FEAR - - 86,307 8,964 95,271
Total recognised income FARRHELA

for the year - 24,196 86,307 12,619 123,122
Issue of shares IR 18 8,000 109,769 - - 117,769
Share issue expenses RIDEITES 18 - (79) - = (79)
Share of reserves of associates JE(LEE & N\ B R 18 - 8,234 - - 8,234
Fair value gains on available-for-  A[{t HEEKEER

sale financial assets NEE M 18 - 523 - = 523
Transfer to profit or loss on & AT & IS

disposal of available-for-sale BEET

financial assets ERxHR 18 - (1,640) - - (1,640)
Capital distribution to DKEET

minority shareholders DERRE - - - (180) (180)
Balance at 31 December 2007 —EE+E+ZR

=t+—R&H 111,213 644,300 440,237 56,218 1,251,968
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4R & & F K
For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE-PR/\F+_A=t+—ALFE

Attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
FATESHH AR
Share Other  Retained  Minority
capital  reserves profits  interests Total
DHBR
BE¥ HERE GEERF L § o1
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
M #%TT E%Trt #E%TT  B%Trt  E%TT
Balance at 1 January 2008 —EEN\F-[—B#EH 111,213 644,300 440,237 56,218 1,251,968
Currency translation differences EHEY =5 18 - 25,409 - 4,594 30,003
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(BE)/BF - - (148,808) 43,905  (104,903)
Total recognised income/ ERERH
(expense) for the year BRA/ (i) - 25409  (148,808) 48,499  (74,900)
Repurchase of shares EAR RS 18 (60) (246) (60) - (366)
Issue of shares BIIRG 18 200,075 100,038 - - 300,113
Share issue expenses BRDETRY 18 - (10,054) - - (10,054)
Share of reserves of associates NG 18 - 2,484 - - 2,484
Capital injection from DERE
minority shareholder AR - - - 76 76
Balance at 31 December 2008 “ETN\E+ZR
—t+—H&H 311,228 761,931 291,369 104,793 1,469,321
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 48R & A= &
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BHE-TTN\F+-A=1+—HLFE

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt BT BT T

Cash flows from operating EETHNASRE

activities
Cash (used in)/generated BB (FTA) EE

from operations Re 30(a) (155,180) 97,728
Interest paid ERFE (52,394) (56,244)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEBFEHR (12,192) -
Overseas tax paid EgINR IR (1,926) (626)
Overseas tax refunded RIEFINHIE 4 243
Net cash (used in)/generated from  &B;ESN(FTR), ELE

operating activities H)EIE S (221,688) 41,101
Cash flows from investing RETDHNAESREE

activities
Acquisition of property, plant and BAYE R X

equipment & (3,653) (2,755)
Net cash inflow in respect of HEHEBA RN

disposal of a subsidiary RERAFRE 30(b) - 2,161
Capital contribution to an associate ¥4 T — & A 7 - (22,663)
Capital distribution to DIRE ST OERE

minority shareholders - (180)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - ek

property, plant and equipment BBTE R 723 240
Proceeds from disposal of available- HE&ER{tHE

for-sale financial assets B i% B EFTS K = 6,786
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term HHARTTTER

bank deposits () 60,271 (110,567)
Funds applied to financial assets, net E& AR IEEE @ 58 (32,536) (39,911)
Repayment of loans to third party ~ SE=FEEER 9,324 2,000
Interest received B UF B 7,369 5,355
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due B2 RN F/K K

from associates A, (3Gm) 1,505 (2,982)
Dividends received from an associate B H# & A &][% & 2,137 1,900
Dividends received from financial B A FEERA

assets at fair value through B2 HI IR B B 7

profit or loss BERE 727 86
Net cash generated from/(used in) & E&NELE /(FrH)

investing activities HFIRE 45,867 (160,530)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 48R & A= &
For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_TTZN\F+-_A=1T—HIFE

2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt BETT BT T

Cash flows from financing METHHNREREE

activities
Issue of shares TS 300,113 117,769
Share issue expenses AR EE1TRISE (10,054) (79)
Repurchase of shares BB E AR (366) -
(Decrease)/Increase in trust receipts {S:EiEERITER

bank loans CRLA),/ (117,607) 24,702
Additions of other bank loans I ETRITER 253,610 170,680
Repayment of other bank loans BEAETRITER (213,331) (207,146)
Additions of other loans HEETER - 22,251
Repayment of other loans EBRETCER (12,261) =
(Decrease)/Increase in amounts KRB N B3R IE

due to associates CR),/ 1N (605) 2,119
Interest element of finance lease NREHRE

rental payments A B 210 (249) (442)
Capital element of finance lease NRERE

rental payments Nz (2,206) (3,826)
Capital injection from minority DERERIE A

shareholder [N 76 -
Net cash generated from MESHEENFRS

financing activities 197,120 126,028
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 4R 1717 205 2> 750 89
Increase in cash and ReERBEEEEY

cash equivalents 10 22,049 6,688
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—RAZRER

at 1 January REZEY 283,461 275,156
Effect of exchange rate changes [EREH) & 6,043 1,617
Cash and cash equivalents R+Z—A=+—HZ

at 31 December HWEREESEEY 30(c) 311,553 283,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in steel trading, warehousing
and distribution, steel manufacturing and processing,
property development and investment.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983,
and have a secondary listing on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited since 1990.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 17 April 2009.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

AR e MRS AR Y RE

—REH

BEERARRR([ARR]) A —HR
BERAR - ENMB AR EXK A
HES  RFEEOHE  WEMIEE
FHERRE RIRE -

ARBRBREZTMR L RERRER
DA ARABRMBE—NN=ZFERE
BHMaRZMBERAR([BRA]) £
M R ANZFERFMEEZRZ S
PRBRARIESE = L o

BRRBHPAN  EEMBREAEET
TR - SRAMBHRRCKAEZRAE
“ETNFMA T RIETIE -

EREBREE

REA G EPERREAN T Z ST
REN T - RRBAHAIN - HFHR
EFERNMEFENERER -

21 REREE

RSB BR D RE SR
AEFRIEE SN BREER(E
IS RAER DR © b - A
BAMBRENDERES L
AR R A A e 5 2 R
WEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4: & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BE®HEEHE®)
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 ERIREE)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of certain investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective
in 2008

In the current year, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2008.

RAMBHRRERRELKAER
- W B IR AT ETIRIRE
WE - AIELEMBEE BT
BEE BB RO EEMI S
BEEREBEMEIR)NEMGMIEL
fE&] °

RIBEFBWHREERNREER 2B
BRBEAETERNS G - &
BEIMERERA KBS BRE
TR AV - B0 RECKIEZ I -
BRERERAIBFRAMBTERE
FEE R Z FRA& B mT il A B s 4 B2

5= o

R-FENFEKZER - EETR
E

[y

RAEE  AEEEREMANLTH
BEEMAERONAEEE -
T N\F— - HRBN S HRE
AR AT ETT RERB([#MEE
FATSERE AR ]) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4: & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EE@%{'&%ME(%&)
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 EREXEZ)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7  Reclassification of Financial B HER] SREERN
(Amendments) Assets 3958 M =L
BBV EEwE
AERIFE TR
(&5T7R)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and R (RBRMKER BEMERS
Treasury Share Transactions ERBEEY)- FAE2R—
ZEE115% SEKERF
RN 5
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession B (BBRIHR RIS T
Arrangements HREZEe) - T
REE125
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit HE(ERMGHR HESHER
on a Defined Benefit EREZE®)- H1995—
Asset, Minimum Funding ZREFE 145 RERBHNE
Requirements and their EERRER -
Interaction HIEER
HERBE
2 TR RE R
The application of the new HKFRSs had no material RN B S I ISR RS AR g5t
effect on how the results and financial position for HEgRT ST BN EERT
the current or prior accounting periods have been MARRENEHNFRAEERNE
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior £ - FHilt - BAELRTETEE -

period adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs 1

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of 2

Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs 2

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and 3
Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 32 & HKAS 1 Puttable Financial 2

(Amendments) Instruments and
Obligations Arising
on Liquidation
HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items 3
(Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment 2

(Amendments) in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 Vesting Conditions 2
(Amendment) and Cancellations

VAN
AR A

2

R 755 R R B R

ERTHRRER 2

2.1

WEEE(E)

AEEILEIEREM NI EBME
R R AR FT AT AR IS RT RO ZEH

CHEESER

EEIBRE
8

(EFTA)

EB e
158
(&&4&5T)

B4R
$235%
(&1EE])

BEEER
275k
(BYEET)

BB EE
%32
T 18R
(BETA)

AR

BB GErER
$£395%
CHEY)

BRMBHRE

AR S5 &%

BB
TR
275k
(BETAR)

FEWHRE
Q258

SCHEN)

BBMERE
R B

LupviEa &)

E2 ]l

LINSPSE AV

BIp e

DhE S
TARBE
EENET

BEREH
BE

RIS BAT -
SR
BT
AT
BB

i ES RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4: & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

ERTHRRER 2

2.1 BUEEE)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations BEUGHE EBAH
AERI| 2355
(&15E])
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments BEMBHRE KEDED
AERI| 2B 855
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty BE (BRI =P 8HEE
Programmes mERE
E R
2REE 135
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for B (BB FHERE
the Construction mERE &
of Real Estate ZEg)—
2B 155
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net A (BBREIHE BINEBIRE
Investment in a mERE B A E
Foreign Operation ZEg)—
ZREFE 165
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of (BRI mAEsE
Non-cash Assets to mERE DIRIER &
Owners ZE®)— BE
2REE175%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets HE(BEBRG®E REFEE
from Customers R e BE
ZEg)—
2EE 185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4: & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBERE2)

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 ERIREE)
Notes: B
1. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 1. R-TTAE—F—Bs BB

January 2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5,
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

2. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

3. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

4.  Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008

5.  Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

6. Effective for transfers of assets from customers received
on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect
the accounting for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning on
or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in a parent'’s
ownership interest in subsidiary. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

METHRAEN  EEEHMBRE
ZERFESSHRHETAIR —FTNFL
A— Bz &Rme SR AR

2. _??ﬂi H—Bzz &A%
BEFER AR

3. K_Y?ﬂitﬂ Ak & FR%H
MEsHERAEX

4. E{‘_Y?/\itﬂ Ak & FR%H
MEsHERAEX

5. b‘{‘_??/\i'i'ﬂ Ak & FR%H
MEsHERAEX

6. R-ZEThFLtA—-Bxk2EKI
BEPHEREERBER

BB A RS ERIEI%R (&
FDATREHIKEEAN—ZT
FLA—B 2 ERRNERFE
REHENEBEHSHRERE
EREE  BEGERE27%R
(] B e ET R RIRE KK
BARIKATE & IR E A
SHEBAE - ANBIESES -
FERE TS EISTER « £5]
FRBUHALBENEERTBRR
WEEBANTZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

AR e MRS AR Y RE

2 EESHRRBEE)

2.2 {FEwRE

RAMBHRREBBEARE REKE
RABETZA=T—H LW
K -

(a) KiBLA]

MBAREAEEAREER
RS ERRMIEHZ A
ER(EEFKRENER)  —
BT EEEFBREENR
- B EAREREE S
—ERK  BATAITEHAL
BOBCERERNTERTE
BYERE

B A BEEHIREBERE
Bz BREEEAEE AR - 1B
NAERGIER L2 BRI
FRE AR

SETWIE AT RIEAR S E WS
B R R AMRITE © Wi
RARBRR 2 B HFETE
= - FTBITHRATARMAE
EYAENR BN R FER
B SR EREHEOX
R o FERRA R AREERA]
BBNEENRFIAENAE
RERBE  BRARERK
BEMNATEFTE MW
EA D BBIRE R B - UK
FE BN AR 38 7 5% [ R 45 PIT WU
MR B EEFEA HENH
B AR - BREAAE
RIFEANB AR EEREN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

®)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains
and losses for the Group and are recorded in
the consolidated income statement. Purchases
from minority interests result in goodwill, being
the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary.

VAN
AR A

2

R 755 R R B R

ERTHRRER 2

2.2 FERE(E)

(a)

(b)

K& 2 7] (&)

SEARRZENRS - B8R
RRERZHWam T AL -
AREBREEINT AL - 18
RAMEHRRCIRFEIEL
ME - AREREAREE R
BERN AP HmE LFE—
B o

EARRARZEEABRA R
fI B R B 2 R E A AMEHIRR
HEBIREETIR - HEBQF
ZEEBARFRE W B
BBARR °

B BRI 2 X5

SERA IR DB R S
RZMAEEBEAIIALR S
MR - B E T OB RE
mmELNEEABERAR
mxlk - KB A D BARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 2.2 FERE(E)

(c)  Associates (o HBELE

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Diluted gains and losses in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

BERRIEMEAKEHES
EAFEIMEZGENE
B BEMNEH20%—50%1%
SHENIE - BERRREN
RREHEAR - MIRAKA
TR - ARBREBE RR 2
ERFREBREZFOPE
R R REHRERE

AREBEEPBRBE AR
i M S BRI AR & 1R s R B
R MEERERFERNE
AN REEIRAFER - RERE
EERERF ZWERES N
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BERRZBREINNBER
EZBEnmzER - BT
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SECDRBERRAREREEN
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AREBEREBENRZHERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associates (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in associates are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of segments operating
in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.4 SMEER(E)

(b) Transactions and balances b) XZRiEH
Foreign currency transactions are translated HNEZx BT R 2x B A R R
into the functional currency using the exchange HERXPHEFE - BT
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions HEREX BE AT

or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security, and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in profit or
loss, and other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in equity.

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in
the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.4 SMEER(E)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet

presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each consolidated

(©)
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income statement are translated at average MBAKTEAHERKE
exchange rates (unless this average is (BB FHIE =R IE A

not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 3 - BB RERE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 20 to 50 years

— Leasehold 2 to 10 years
improvements (over the period of leases)

— Machinery 10 years

— Furniture and 4 to 10 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.6 Intangible assets
(@) Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.

2.7 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.7 Investment properties (continued)

2.7 BREMEE)

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers. Investment property
that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property or for which the market has
become less active continues to be measured at fair
value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement as part of other gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification
becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as property,
plant and equipment and stated at cost until
construction or development is complete, at which
time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted
for as investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as
a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement.

For a transfer from properties held for sale to
investment properties, any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purposes for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends
to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4: & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

29 MEZIEE)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement 292 MEBREE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
other gains, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidation income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4: & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRER 2

2.9 Financial assets (continued) 2.9 BMEZIEE)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 292 HBARE ()

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and
classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the security
and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. The translation differences on
monetary securities are recognised in profit or
loss; translation differences on non-monetary
securities are recognised in equity. Changes in
the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as gains
and losses from investment securities.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market for
a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group establishes fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss)
is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

2.10Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRERER 2

2.11 Accounts and other receivables

2.11 FEIRIR R K E R

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of accounts and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against to the consolidated income
statement.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and financial
institutions, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

2.13Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHEEREZ)
(continued)

2.14 Accounts payable 2.14 E{HIRIE

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.15Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHEEREZ)
(continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.16 ZERBEFR{EBNIG(£Z)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

EXEFTEHRENR A EAEEM
BEMNHREREENBBEELZREN
BHRERMIREECZEENERZE
REER - R - HEEMEHRIAR
BEXRZ(TEEEEEH)FHE
EXAENTHER - i XAER
FHIZESH RS NERRA
& - RITERER o BIEFTISBIRIR
RERERAAERMREZBM
YEABEERAEEERNIE
EFEHARBSERER/EE
Rz RE(REP) MEE -

BEFGHEEESRAEERR
ERM BN ML Al ERE R ER
R ©

BELEFGHERMB AR L E A
AREEACEREZEMERE 2
BREAREE ARG =27 &
EIFFRE - R ZERER R R K
BRIEE TS EDAIBRIN o

2.17 ERWE#H

@ EREZRE

BEEFBRMEHARBEKRZ
RNEREEZARER - K
SERBESERLEEE
REZRBMELEZFBREE
HIRE AR 2 et B EEH &
o

BEZHRBEERSEFEEZNH
BT ERER - EEEEEAK
& -

I 74 Annual Report 2008 4 iz 1N



O resmman .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Bonus plans

(c)

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within
12 months after balance sheet date are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

VAN
AR A

2

R 755 R R B R

ERTHRERER 2

217 ERIEFI(E)

(b)

(c)

Hzitd

EAKEARECRBEZR
BimEER A REKHEEE
B MEASREANELE
R ASEAERRI2EAR
e 2 BB BIEREBALR

BURTEE

SELEZRIEHFRNRG
g ArElZEE—REBUE
BrRESHER -

HRRERSKEE - AEBEIA
SREIE - SR BEREEST R
[A) R FISRALA B B AR KRR
B - REBE K
& - BMEE— S REE - ]
TR FE T B R AR R 1B B AR A5
X Bt EBE B AR
Fat &I e fE B T M M
B o R HRIRRR SRR
KA AR RN AR M ER R E
7o

. Annual Report 2008 3k 75 I



© vl

AR e MRS AR Y RE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)
(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee
of the entity over a specified time period).
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At each balance sheet date, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

2.18Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEE®HBEEES)
(continued)
2.18Provisions (continued) 2.18 B\ (Z)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.19Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
value-added tax, business tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to customers.

(b) Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

(c) Service income — service income is recognised
in the accounting periods in which the services
are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19Revenue recognition (continued)

(d)

Interest income — interest income is recognised
on a time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

2.20 Leases

(@)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor),
including upfront payment made for leasehold
land and leasehold land use right, are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBERE2)
(continued)
2.20 Leases (continued) 220 B (&)

(b) Finance leases (continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in current and non-current borrowings. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the consolidated income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

2.21Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest-rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The board provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investing of excess
liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Approximately 88% (2007: 89%)
of the Group’s turnover are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making
the sale, whilst approximately 10%
(2007: 7%) of costs are denominated
in the units’ functional currency. The
Group manages the foreign exchange
exposure arising from its normal course
of business activities and investments in
foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flow generated from business transactions
locally. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and forward
exchange contracts are used for hedging
purposes when required.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the balance sheet date to a
reasonably possible change in the United
States dollars (US$) and Chinese Renminbi
(RMB) exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's
loss/profit after tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)
and the Group'’s equity.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEREZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREERE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEEE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SNERPR(E)

(Increase)/

Increase/  Decrease in Increase/

(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in

US$  income tax equity
FRErGIRE

ETLA/ ERGEM) Ham|m/

(TH) ne (D)

% HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTR BRTRT

2008 k-1 J 1§
If HK$ weakens against US$ (AT RETHEES 10 39,981 39,981
If HKS strengthens against US$ T RETEME (10) (39,981) (39,981)
Increase/
Increase/  (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after  (Decrease) in
us$ income tax equity
BRET1S 14
I LA/ &g/ R,/
(TF%) (&) (A2)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BB eI
2007 ZETLE
If HK$ weakens against US$ BT =T Es 5 1,655 1,655
If HK$ strengthens against US$ (W& T E TR (5) (1,655) (1,655)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERBEEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEREBERE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEEE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SNERPR(E)

(Increase)/

Increase/  Decrease in Increase/

(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in

RMB income tax equity
FRErGIRE

AR®LH/ BIROEM)/ Ham|m/

(TH) nd (D)

% HK$'000 HK$’000

BRTR BRTRT

2008 k-1 J 1§
If HKS weakens against RMB TR ARWER 10 (1,752) (1,752)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB (&R A R ¥EM% (10) 1,752 1,752
Increase/
Increase/  (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after ~ (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
BRETIS 14
ARE LR/ &R/ R,/
(TB) (R2) (R2)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
2007 e 3
If HK$ weakens against RMB HATTH AR BE 10 4,366 4,366
If HK$ strengthens against RMB &7 AREESR (10) (4,366) (4,366)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity
investments (Note 14) as at 31 December
2008. The Group's listed investments are
listed in Hong Kong and overseas are
valued at quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in the
fair values of the equity investments with
all other variables held constant and after
any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the balance sheet date.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERBEEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TEBERE(E)
(i) Price risk (continued) (i) BIERE)
Increase/
(Decrease) in (Increase)/

carrying amount  Decrease in Increase/
of equity loss after  (Decrease) in
investment income tax equity

BERE  BAARE
REESEN BROEW)/  #&fEm/
(®D) wY (WD)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EWTR EWTR EWTR

2008 ZBENEF
5% increase in equity price BERELAS% 2,010 1,678 1,678
5% decrease in equity price BREBEHETES% (2,010) (1,678) (1,678)
Increase/
(Decrease) in Increase/
carrying amount  (Decrease) in Increase/
of equity profit after ~ (Decrease) in
investment income tax equity
BRARE BRATEHIR
REEEM BRI/ EmEm/
(R4) (R4) ORid)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
2007 —ETLHEF
5% increase in equity price BRAEBE EF5% 2,431 2,005 2,005
5% decrease in equity price BRABAE TBE5% (2,431) (2,005) (2,005)
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERBEEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREERE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) 5 EfR (&)
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (i) BeRERATEN=EE

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. During 2008 and
2007, the Group's borrowings at variable
rate were denominated in US$, RMB and
HKS.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s loss/profit
after tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBBEEZ)

3.1 MEREBERE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TR (E)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (i) FensRkATENER
(continued) M (42)

(Increase)/

Increase/ Decrease in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BRErEIRE
FIEER  BReEEm/ Eam|m/
/(&) e (D)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT ERTT
2008 —EENE
us$ ES 1 (212) (212)
RMB AE#% 1 (333) (333)
HK$ BT 1 (803) (803)
uss E (1) 212 212
RMB AE% (1) 333 333
HK$ BT (1) 803 803
Increase/
Increase/  (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after  (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BRPTS 12
FIEEE arlEm/ BmEm/
/(i) ORd) ORid)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
2007 —ETLE
us$ T 1 (1,406) (1,406)
RMB AR 1 (437) (437)
HKS BT 1 (418) (418)
us$ = (1) 1,406 1,406
RMB N (1) 437 437
HK$ BT (1) 418 418
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, due from
associates and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERSEEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () WEEERE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial BIEE S 4RI ~ st
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on g KREFERLEEHMBas
the contractual undiscounted payments, was as ZEHMT
follows:
Carrying Total More than ~ More than

amount as per  contractual Ondemand  1yearbut 5 years but
consolidated undiscounted  or within less than less than
balance sheet  cash flows 1 year 5 years 10 years
®iE8 Bi#
BEffRRe MRMRZ EERE —FUL RFNE
REE RERERE -FARE EREFR ERTEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI

2008 bt £ J1E 2
Borrowings HR® 597,272 610,316 456,861 100,331 53,124
Due to associates RBELRRE 24,301 24,301 24,301 - -
Bills and accounts payable FEfE il R iR 335,897 335,897 335,897 - -
Other payables and HEBRHERRERER
accruals 113,479 113,479 113,479 - -
1,070,949 1,083,993 930,538 100,331 53,124
Carrying Total More than
amount as per  contractual ~ On demand 1 year
consolidated  undiscounted or within ~ but less than
balance sheet  cash flows 1 year 5 years
e BU#)
EERfERe MARERZ  EER®  —FHE
RHE ReREdE —FAER ARLFR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT  A%Tr  B%Tr  BETR
2007 “ETHE
Borrowings B 686,406 710,506 666,062 44,444
Due to associates YN AYNCIEGE) 24,906 24,906 24,906 -
Bills and accounts ERZER
payable FERIRIA 529,078 529,078 529,078 -
Other payables and HUREMIRE
accruals REHER 60,002 60,002 60,002 -

1,300,392 1,324,492 1,280,048 44,444
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity (including share capital,
reserves, retained profits, minority interests
and other loans from minority shareholders of
subsidiaries as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet).

During 2008, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2007, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2008 and
2007 are as follows:

iR e MRS AR Y RE

3 MERREHEZ)

32 RemRER

AEBEERESZ BRRRERSE
BRBKE 2R URIRRTER
E# - REECREFE ATRKH
i RERERESEBAREE
NS PN

RERRABRERNER  AKEK
EHRBABRRIKMNBEZEE © [
PR BEE R HBITHBRLD

AEBIZER RERHBERAL RE
BN o bbb RIZE T3 BE R AR
HEEAGTE - BEFREREER
(BREEEEABRMIITZR
BIERBEFRRERREE
BYEHRTE - KHABRABEMN
BERaHD (BRGAEEARRK
PROIREVARA - &6 - (RE AR -
DR N KB AR D BAR
MEBER) o

RZZFZENE  AREZRBR
MR B AR B RA RER
90% @ E-—TTLFHE - N-F
ENFR-_BTLF+T_A=1—
B2z B R EHEBALL =T

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Total debts RIET 597,272 686,406
Less: Cash and cash B IRENIBEEBY

equivalents KRR (311,553) (283,461)

Net debt FER 285,719 402,945

Total equity e 1,469,321 1,251,968

Adjusted capital R N 1,473,759 1,256,243

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio & 7% £ 4% 78 FE A A b 2R 19% 32%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less impairment provision of
accounts receivable and payable are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations, taking into
account latest market information and past
experience. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgements and estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4
(continued)

FRE AR R (2)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

4.1 RBEHEERMER(E)

(b) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

(b) REYRERFlERGET

The best evidence of fair value of properties is
normally the current prices in an active market
for comparable properties. In the absence of
such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition
or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences, by reference to independent
valuations; and

(ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices.

If information on current or recent prices of
investment properties is not available, the fair
values of investment properties are determined
using discounted cash flow valuation
techniques. The Group uses assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing
at each balance sheet date.

MEN D FENRERELE
AR ERARLE M) AR BE T 45
MERER HERAUEE
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 RIREiEERIE 2)
(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 FRSHEEREN(Z)

(continued)

(b) Estimate of fair value of investment properties b) BEYZENFESRE(E)
(continued)
The principal assumptions underlying EEEHAVYEGEIHEER
management’s estimation of fair value are LR AN HIKE : T8
those related to: the receipt of contractual HAR AR MEAS : E|&H 4
rentals; expected future market rentals; void B3R RiEEMELIE =X o )t
periods; maintenance requirements; and EihETHEEES Sk
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are IR R AEBN TR S
regularly compared to actual market yield data, TR REVEH B o

and actual transactions by the Group and those
reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are TBHEAR SR T BT R BAE k1L
determined on the basis of current market W) 2 7E [B) — Hb 2 FO 4R ST B & B
rentals for similar properties in the same THEAESET -

location and condition.

(c) Current taxation and deferred taxation (c) FEFIE RGBT

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland REBZEBHERR RSN
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement WMIE - AETHERESTEN
is required in determining the amount of S ERARENEER 2
the provision for taxation and the timing of VEREARHE - £ — %5
payment of the related taxation. There are Brh o BB STEER S
many transactions and calculations for which B H ST TR TETE
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain H) o Mt S =AM SR RIE%
during the ordinary course of business. Where BES YNSRIt
the final tax outcome of these matters is SEEREUS S M0 (e |} S e o HE
different from the amounts that were initially RS FT SR AR IE R 4 o

recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary w18 [E 37 5 5k 5K A AL R AE JE
differences and tax losses are recognised as IR - SEREE RIS
management considers it is probable that future BUAEFIR  EHZERER
taxable profit will be available against which R B R EE T IE E E e i
the temporary differences or tax losses can 2 o ETRHE R A BIRREET
be utilised. Where the expectation is different B RSN EE HE
from the original estimate, such differences AR IBEEMFIE
will impact the recognition of deferred taxation HIFEZ o

assets and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BI@®iH{EERIE &)
(continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s 42 BERFEETHEENRESE

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SWEE
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (a) TERERX-ZEBIT
The Group is organised into three major operating REBRH=-(EAXELEEMERK ¢
units: (i) steel trading, warehousing and distribution; VREES - AEESH  ()E
(ii) steel manufacturing and processing; and (iii) TS RiiVEHERZERE
property development and investment. & o
Turnover recognised during the year is as follows: NEEHER Y ZEFMT ¢
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Sale of goods HE 8,299,344 5,420,072
Rental income HE WA 14,350 13,026
Service income ARAG U A 20,902 18,914
8,334,596 5,452,012
The segment results for the year ended 31 December BE—ZEE+HE+-_FA=+—HILEE
2007 are as follows: R DEBEELE T ¢
Steel trading, Steel Property
warehousing manu-  development
and facturing and and
distribution ~ processing  investment Others  Unallocated Group
HEgs e EHERE
RRERNE  MIRE R#&E Y Ank £E

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT BBt A%Tn BBt A%Tr BRI

Total segment sales P EFHELE 4,995,876 421,183 13,258 22,316 - 5452633
Inter-segment sales AEREE - - (232) (389) = (621)
Sales HE 4,995,876 421,183 13,026 21,927 - 5,452,012
Operating profit/(loss) L& /() 71,125 (18,361) 30,867 1,004 35,904 120,539
Finance costs REM A (59,499)
Share of profits of ElhEE A

associates B 30,211
Profit before taxation B B2 91,251
Taxation B 4,020
Profit for the year EEEF 95,271
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEHEE)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) EERERX-LBHEW(E)
(continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE—TT N\E+-A=+—HI
2008 are as follows: FRENDEEEMT ¢

Steel
Steel trading, manu- Property
warehousing  facturing development
and and and
distribution  processing investment Others Unallocated Group
RER5 fE EHEMS
BRRAH mIgE R&# RE *AE @

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
ERTT  EWTR  BRTR  ERTR  EWTR  RWTR

Total segment sales DEfsEE AL 7,711,903 591,986 14,568 21,693 - 8,340,150
Inter-segment sales AHREE (4,657) (270) (218) (409) - (5,554)
Sales HE 7,707,246 591,716 14,350 21,284 - 8,334,596
Operating profit/(loss) &4 &F| /(&#E) 88,558 22,384 193,932 297 (89,624) 215,547
Finance costs AR (54,007)
Share of losses of EEBERT

associates EE (196,866)
Loss before taxation B RIER (35,326)
Taxation A (69,577)
Loss for the year EEER (104,903)
Unallocated operating profit/(loss) represents other KOMEERF /(BB REEK
gains (including loss on deemed acquisition of w(BEREEARE AT ERE
interest in an associate/dilution gain in an associate) B e AR ERE) REEY
and expenses at corporate level. Fix o

I 96 Annual Report 2008 4 iy 1N



JEE——

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4; & Bf 7% 3 3% Mt =%

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBIEE)
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (a) ETERERX-ZEBIW(ZE)
(continued)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RS +HF+—A=+—HHS
2007 and depreciation, amortisation and capital MEEMBBURBE-_SS+5F
expenditures for the year ended 31 December 2007 +—B=+—HIIEEHITE &
are as follows: EREABET T
Steel trading, Steel Property
warehousing manu-  development
and facturing and and
distribution ~ processing  investment Others  Unallocated Group
HEE S g BHER%
RRRAE  MIRE Riz& v AR &5

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTL  ERTT BRI A¥TR ARt A%TR

Assets BE 1,102,369 493,916 368,112 14,686 657,108 2,636,191
Liabilities =l 613,119 450,537 69,961 31,408 219,198 1,384,223
Depreciation bk 743 6,457 1,194 1,384 476 10,254
Amortisation B - 368 33 - 1,261 1,662
Capital expenditures AR X 2,555 3,372 20 584 411 6,942
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEHEE)
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (a) ETERERX-ZEBIW(ZE)
(continued)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RS N\EF+—_A=+—HBHHH
2008 and depreciation, amortisation and capital MEEMBBUARBE S )\F
expenditures for the year ended 31 December 2008 +—B=+—HIIEEHITE &
are as follows: EREABET T
Steel trading, Steel Property
warehousing manu- development
and facturing and and
distribution  processing investment Others Unallocated Group
RERS g ERERR
BRR2H mIgE RiE iE 2K %0

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
ERTT  BRTR  ERTR BRTR  ERTR ERTR

Assets BE 1,186,553 457,941 579,309 8,926 431,308 2,664,037
Liabilities af 541,316 297,746 94,789 8,895 251,970 1,194,716
Depreciation nE 847 6,204 2,275 1,514 503 11,343
Amortisation B - 368 36 - 1,263 1,667
Capital expenditures AR X 609 1,097 1,654 133 160 3,653
Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold land SEEEFTEAEHAE TR i
and land use rights, property, plant and equipment, R W% WMERHRE- T
inventories, receivables and operating cash. Deferred E . EWRGREERS - EERTE
taxation and investments in associates are included REsE N T E BRSO IE R
as unallocated and excluded from segment assets. M ANBIEEDZEE o

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. SDEBEREERGEMERK o HEE
They exclude items such as taxation and corporate ETBEHENMNEER o
borrowings.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to property, BARY BIEHEE  HENS%
plant and equipment. HIRE o
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEBEEE)
(b) Secondary reporting format - geographical (b) REHFERX - HESD
segments
The Group's business segments operate in four main ANEBEMELEDBENEEEHE
geographical areas, even though they are managed gAR, BEOR SR IR B Y A ER T
on a worldwide basis. =
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Sales (by location of HE (REE
customers) =S )
— Mainland China — 2,752,025 2,244,590
— Asia (other than Mainland — N (B g+
China and Hong Kong) EEE) 2,103,138 1,546,468
— Europe — BOM 2,897,564 1,029,267
— Others —H¥ 581,869 631,687
8,334,596 5,452,012
Assets located in BEMR
— Mainland China — A [ 1,042,461 835,086
— Hong Kong —&B 1,261,870 1,292,980
— Others —Hv 88,372 32,804
2,392,703 2,160,870
Associates iR /NE] 271,334 475,321
2,664,037 2,636,191
Capital expenditures in EARF TR
— Mainland China —E 3,244 2,837
- Hong Kong —&BB 180 4,105
— Others —HEv 229 -
3,653 6,942
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6 HETHERTHERE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use REBEMRE 1%+ 1P BREAy RS
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and ETENLERES  HERESEST
their net book amounts are analysed as follows: OENE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBER
Leases of over 50 years AE+FHLEEE 63,552 64,794
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EEHBLINEE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +Z A +EHMEE 15,864 16,207
79,416 81,001
Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate RZZEENF+ZA=+—80 " H
carrying amount of approximately HK$69,089,000 as at Er Rk EREAREELNS
31 December 2008 (2007: HK$70,489,000) were pledged % 69,089,000 L (ZEZ £ F : Bk
to secure against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings 70,489,0007T) B A H EBIRITERE
(see Note 19). R (R FHIEET19) ©
Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights MHE 3+ b AR FAEE BN
during the year is as follows: N
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Opening H317) 81,001 82,568
Exchange differences E W ZERE 62 77
Amortisation of prepaid operating FE{f4&:EHE
lease payments TRIE 8 (1,647) (1,644)
79,416 81,001
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME- BBEME
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Motor
Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
BEBTF fRA
BT 3 Hes S B et

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT  BRTr  A%Tn BRTr  A%Tn BRI

At 1 January 2007 RZEZtE-A—-H
Cost KA 102,913 12,353 69,256 12,043 14,214 210,779
Accumulated depreciation 2:tihE (27,957) (7,244) (50,297) (8,669) (10,866) (105,033)
Net book amount IREFE 74,956 5,109 18,959 3,374 3,348 105,746
Year ended HE-ZZ+E

31 December 2007 TZA=T—RLEEE
Opening net book amount MR EE 74,956 5,109 18,959 3,374 3,348 105,746
Exchange differences ERESR 2,254 354 - 17 51 2,776
Additions R - 839 3,125 619 2,359 6,942
Depreciation e (3,382) (1,259) (3,021) (909) (1,683) (10,254)
Closing net book amount HRIE R E 73,828 5,043 19,063 3,201 4,075 105,210
At 31 December 2007 R-EZRLE

+-A=t-H

Cost A 105,503 13,697 72,381 12,899 13,333 217,813
Accumulated depreciation 2:tihE (31,675) (8,654) (53,318) (9,698) (9,258) (112,603)
Net book amount EEEE 73,828 5,043 19,063 3,201 4,075 105,210
Year ended HE-ZT)\E

31 December 2008 TZA=T—RLEEE
Opening net book amount MR ZE 73,828 5,043 19,063 3,201 4,075 105,210
Exchange differences ERER 1,172 246 - 85 33 2,136
Additions R 635 1,962 210 846 - 3,653
Disposals HE - (37) (77) (38) (246) (398)
Depreciation bl (3,457) (2,452) (3,154) (947) (1,333) (11,343)
Closing net book amount R R E 72,778 4,762 16,042 3,147 2,529 99,258
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE

+-A=t-H

Cost A 108,240 16,225 72,334 13,242 11,400 221,441
Accumulated depreciation 2:tihE (35,462) (11,463) (56,292) (10,095) (8,871)  (122,183)
Net book amount EEEE 72,778 4,762 16,042 3,147 2,529 99,258
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$6,009,000
(2007: HK$6,195,000) has been expensed in cost of
sales, HK$852,000 (2007: HK$748,000) in selling
and distribution expenses and HK$4,482,000 (2007:
HK$3,311,000) in general and administrative expenses.

Buildings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$44,893,000 at 31 December 2008 (2007:
HK$46,135,000) were pledged to secure against certain
of the Group’s bank borrowings (see Note 19).

Motor vehicles and machinery include the following
amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance
leases:

VAN
AR A

R 755 R R B R

W% - WBREM(E)

EZAEH4586,009,000 (==
T4 H#6,195,0007T ) 1E 1 & A A
P8 0 852,000 (— T4 ¢
748,000 )T ASHE R D HER
M #4,482,000c (ZFZEHF : B
3,311,00070) BIEF A—MRATHREA o

RZZEZENF+TZA=+—H ' EFIK
EEA)E 44,893,000 ( - BT L4 ¢
75#46,135,00070) E A D EEEITE
SKAEE AR (RHIEE19) ©

SEERBEREAM T ER NS
BRETHRSE

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Cost — capitalised finance leases A —-EXRb@ERE 8,984 12,546
Accumulated depreciation ZtHinE (3,079) (3,870)
Net book amount IR E R E 5,905 8,676
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 H_HEME
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Beginning of the year £ 286,501 237,857
Fair value gains (included in other A {EUZES
gains, net) (Note 22) (BREEETCWEFE)(Mit22) 13,775 31,243
Exchange differences & =58 15,099 17,401
Transfer from properties HEEMEREA
held for sale 207,351 -
End of the year FR 522,726 286,501
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the properties
held for sale of the Group were reclassified as investment
properties. For the transfer from properties held for
sale to investment properties, the difference between
the fair value of the properties at the date of transfer
and its carrying amount, amounting to approximately
HK$169,139,000, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The investment properties were revalued on an open
market basis at 31 December 2008 by independent,
professionally qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
net book amounts are analysed as follows:

=N R RS E

wBRME 2

HE_ZZN\F+-_A=+—HL*HF
B AEBEBEFENEENOERIRE
Yz - SEMFEEREREWMER - Z
Y EE AN A FEMELATAIRE
B4 A51169,139,0007T 2 FEIH)Z=5E
BAEHZE_ZEEN\F+ZA=+—HL
FEGABRRPER -

REMEE_TTNF+_A=1+—H
EE?%_LE!?%E\QTD%ﬁﬁﬂil‘ﬂ%ﬂﬁéﬁﬁ
HERERRRREARMEER

7$‘£li{&é§¢%%ﬁﬂ£ SR EIREFE
DT

2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT
Mainland China =8

— held on leases of over 50 years —EAA+FEHU FHHEE 19,205 17,527

— held on leases of between 10 —BETERTFH
and 50 years MEE 503,521 268,974
522,726 286,501

At 31 December 2008, investment properties of
approximately HK$449,942,000 (2007: HK$91,224,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group's banking
facilities (see Note 19).

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRRD « AR

R-ZBENE+-_A=1+—08  &EYD
W #449,942,0007T ( —ZT 4 ¢
75%.91,224,0007T) B FE# - (EAARSE
Bz RTmEEEm(RHEE19) -

HELAFRERER

(a) MIBLT®RRE

Company
47
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
#RFr BT
42,415 42,415
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9 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 9

(continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

AR e MRS AR Y RE

HEAFRBERERZ)

() MHEBLATRE(E)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2008:

Name

A

Directly held:
BERRA

Burwill and Company Limited

Burwill HK Portfolio Limited

Burwill China Portfolio Limited

Indirectly held:
BERE

Burwill Resources Limited

BB EEERAT]

Burwill Resources Spain, S.A.

Place of
incorporation/
operations and
kind of legal entity

MR/ 5
i ROATE AL

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BABREMELR

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

RBRAES
BREMAT

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

RBRAES
BREAAT

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BABREMELR

Spain limited
liability company
ERTEREE AR

Issued and
fully paid capital

BERTR
ESRBA

HK$50,000,000
and £50,000

5 150,000,0007T
550,00055 %

Us$2
2%

US$1
(E

HK$ 1,000,000
##£1,000,0007T

EUR62,000
62,0001 7T

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
AEERRZ
1w/ BRERE
BRARSL

100%

100%

100%

100%

90%

R-EBEEZNEFE+-_A=+—Hz=x
ZHE AR T

Principal activities

IRFBUE

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Steel trading
MEES

Steel trading
HEEH
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9 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 9
(continued)

HEAFRBERERZ)

() MHEBARRRE(E)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage of

Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital to the Group ~ Principal activities
TEEHFL
L BETR En/ BREE
e 2 S AT BARBRA BARSL FEXBUE
Indirectly held: (continued)
MERE : (&)
Burwill Steel Company Limited  The British Virgin Us$13 100%  Investment holding
Islands limited 137 REZR
liability company
RBRLES
BREMAT
Burwill Steel Pipes Limited Hong Kong limited HK$30,000,000 100%  Steel manufacturing
ERMERR AR liability company 7 1#£30,000,0007T and processing
BABREMELR MEMIEE
Burwill Times Industrial Hong Kong limited HK$2 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company 2T REER
ERRREXEBRAA BEEEREARA
Burwill Warehousing Mainland China US$1,200,000 100%  Steel warehousing
(Shanghai) Limited (i) mh 1,200,000 7T and distribution
ERAR(LB)ARAF) WEBFERDH
Dongguan Hingwah Metals Mainland China HK$72,000,000 100%  Steel manufacturing
Factory Limited (i) Hh J&#£72,000,0007T and processing
RERERSBERAR() ME N TRE
ERMELR(RzE) Mainland China HK$28,500,000 100%  Steel manufacturing
NG E ] ,200,0007T and processin
BRAE) HE 75128,500,0007T dp ing
MEMIEE
Hing Wah Metals Factory Hong Kong limited HK$5,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company A H£5,000,0007T REER
HERSHERAA BEEEREARA
Hillot Limited Hong Kong limited HK$500,000 100%  Securities investment
liability company ##500,0007T BHFRE

BRERAAAH
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9 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

9 MEBLARRERERE)

() MHEBARRRE(E)

Percentage of

Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital to the Group ~ Principal activities
TEEHFL
L BETR En/ BREE
e 2 S AT EAR KA BARSL FEXBUE
Indirectly held: (continued)
MERE : (&)
Goldenbridge Services Limited ~ Hong Kong limited HK$2 100%  Property holding
InfEREERAR liability company B2 EENE
BABREMELR
BNEREEER QR0 Mainland China RMB60,000,000 69%  Property holding
mh AE#60,000,0007T and development
RENFLEHE
kS
Yinmain Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited HK$2 100%  Property holding
EEELAR AT liability company 2T BAEME
BABREMELR

Notes:

(i) Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, Dongguan
Hingwah Metals Factory Limited and 2 /g i & . @
(Rz)EMR A7 are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Mainland China to be operated for 50
years up to March 2050, 20 years up to July 2013 and 12
years up to December 2013, respectively.

(i) HBMEREXEAR AT is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in Mainland China to be operated for
40 years up to April 2039.

The above list includes only those subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 December
2008.

Hrat

iy BHER(LE)BRAR  REH
ERSMARARRERMMERM
(RE)BRARHBRFEKLZ
HIEBELE  BEHARIART
FE_TRTE=/ - Zt+FE=
E—=FtARTZFEZE—=
F+=H -

iy BMNEKRKEXFRABERPBEK

YZHINREBERE  EXHLHIL+
FET=NAFIA -

AEMSEBREERAEAKE
BAEZUZMBRR - EFRRMN
FIEEMBRARZHE  HE<
FIRBENILK -

RBE_ZZ/\F+_-_A=+—H
I FEREMERE - MEBARIER
BEMBEEEER -
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9 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 9
(continued)

HEAFRBERERZ)

(b) Balances with subsidiaries (b) MEATERER
BRKEBAR KRN BB
462,474,0007C( —ZEZ+4F : B
405,000,00070) R —EEtF+ =
B=+—HBXRMBRRRNEEE
94,366,0007T 2 F B AE FRI1TE
EREFEHRSEE75E(ZEE
+F : 6.75BE7.75E) R TAR—

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$462,474,000
(2007: HK$405,000,000) and amount due to
subsidiary approximately HK$94,366,000 at 31
December 2007 which bear interest at commercial
banks’ lending rate of 5% to 6.75% (2007: 6.75%
to 7.75%) per annum and are not repayable

within one year, all the outstanding balances with FRIERIN - FTEEEENEB AT
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ERIGERE - 25 B R EE KR
repayable on demand. B o

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10 BiEATFRERER

(a) Investments in associates — Group

(a) BEELATRE-KME

Group
£E

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Beginning of the year F ) 475,321 356,624
Share of results of associates Frih Bt & A R 4R

— (losses)/profits before —BEia (E18), &BF)

taxation (197,384) 30,797

— taxation — 1A 518 (586)

278,455 386,835

Dividends received B A8 (2,137) (1,900)

Exchange differences & =58 6,069 6,458

Share of reserves of associates FE(LESR 2N Al 2,484 8,234

Additions 18855 - 22,663
Loss on deemed acquisition of RS- YN NG|

interest in an associate ERER (13,537) =

Dilution gain in an associate Bt N A e - 53,031

End of the year FER 271,334 475,321
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10 BiEATIREIRES &)

(continued)
(a) Investments in associates — Group (continued) (a) BMEBAFRE -£H(Z)
The Group's interests in associates were as follows: NEFEBE N T REZRNT
% of
Particulars of Country of Profit/ interest
Name issued capital incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues (loss) held
E%f BHl/ KA
5 KGR AR ER £E af8 WA (B%) %
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BRI BRI AT BRI
2007
China LotSynergy Holdings Ordinary shares Bermuda 575,889 192,238 64,374 27,008 20.05%
Limited of HK$0.0025 each, BEE (Direct)
EYIERERAR listec in Hong Kong (5%)
EER - BhE% 0.09%
0.00255 (Indirect)
WEELT (Fifk)
Indlirectly held:
RERA
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 59,953 21,598 79,195 (534) 20%
Product (BVI) Limited US$0.1 each, unlisted Islands
LA 8K ERRAES
0.1%7 » L
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 229,088 176,544 391,319 3,730 29%
Processing & 1S$19,997,570 M
Distribution Co. Ltd. ELER
SRBN) 19,997 57057
MIARAA
Bt EES AR AR Paid up capital of Mainland China 2,558 1,787 2,148 7 30%
RMB5,000,000 B
EHERARY
5,000,0007c

867,488 392,167 537,036 30,211
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10
(continued)

BELAFIRERERZ)

(a) Investments in associates — Group (continued) (a) BMEBAFRE -£H(Z)

% of
Particulars of Country of Profit/ interest
Name issued capital incorporation Assets Liabilties Revenues (loss) held
BEf | B/ B
1 U R ER BE 8f ON (B%8) B&%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
2008
China LotSynergy Holdings Ordinary shares Bermuda 377,155 195,666 24241 (193,882) 20.74%
Limited of HK$0.0025 each, BRE (Direct)
EYERARAR isted in Hong Kong (EE)
Lk BREE 0.09%
0.002577 (Indirect)
REBLT (%)
Indirectly held:
RS -
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 55,049 22,583 81,893 (6,232) 20%
Product (BVI) Limited US$0.1 each, unlisted Islands
£EROSR ARRMER
0157 b
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 162,817 106,390 998,077 3114 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 m
Distribution Co. Ltd. EHER
S (M) Ew 19,997,570
NIBRAR
ANt EEZHAERAT Paid up capital of Mainland China 2,901 1,949 2,94 134 30%
RMB5,000,000 e
BAERARY
5,000,0005¢
597,922 326,588 1,107,135 (196,866)
(b) Investment in an associate - Company (b) BEBEATIRE—LF
Company
N
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Shares listed in Hong Kong REE ETR D — B
— at cost 10,766 10,766
Market value of listed shares  FTRZ A H{E 191,916 1,489,265
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10 BiE&AEIIRIRER 2)

(continued)

(c) Balances with associates

The outstanding balances with associates are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

() HELFRR

NEERGEER - 22

demand.
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1 BENNSZ&MTAE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RNEEH  SESRTAZIREED
financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as T
follows:
Group $EH
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
Loans and loss (held financial
receivables  for trading) assets Total
BOTE
EBRE
7]
BERR MEBRE ] &
Bl (EEERAE) MEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT B¥%TT BRTT BETT
Financial assets as per BRI REEARBRN
consolidated balance sheet IS EE
2008 —ET)\EF
Available-for-sale AEHENSEE
financial assets - - 1,509 1,509
Financial assets at fair value BATEBRER
through profit or loss B0 H) B 75 B - 40,195 - 40,195
Bills and accounts receivable FEWERE K EWKIRE 973,906 - - 973,906
Deposits and BeRk
other receivables Hy W 50,501 = = 50,501
Due from associates 5%%" AR 2,527 - - 2,527
Other cash and bank balances HeRe RBTES 361,849 - - 361,849
1,388,783 40,195 1,509 1,430,487
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 1 BERNESZERTRZ)

Group $EHE
Financial liabilities at
amortised costs
BREHEE AR
HWHEBAE
HK$’000
BETT
Financial liabilities as per REAEEEEERD
consolidated balance sheet BEaE
2008 —EENE
Borrowings BEX 597,272
Due to associates R B 4 N T O 24,301
Bills and accounts payable J'EHmF&JEHVPEIE 335,897
Other payables and accruals HERMIRERETER 113,479
1,070,949
Group 5EMH
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
Loans and loss (held financial
receivables  for trading) assets Total
ZRFE
BiRER
51 6
=695 B EE A E
B (EEER%R) B EE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets as per R BEABRN
consolidated balance sheet B EE
2007 —TTLHF
Available-for-sale AL ERKEE
financial assets - - 1,509 1,509
Financial assets at fair value RN EERER
through profit or loss YIRH TS EE - 48,610 - 48,610
Bills and accounts receivable — FEYtZZiE & fE UL IR IE 894,707 - - 894,707
Deposits and other receivables Hié&ﬁ & 54,068 - - 54,068
Due from associates EEINGIUE N 4,032 = = 4,032
Pledged bank deposits BIERRIRITER 750 - - 750
Other cash and bank balances E©E& RiE1T445% 394,028 - - 394,028
1,347,585 48,610 1,509 1,397,704
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 1 BERNESZERTRZ)

Group $%H
Financial liabilities at
amortised costs
RS AN AR
M EEaE
HK$'000
BT
Financial liabilities as per RIREEEBEBERN
consolidated balance sheet HIEEE
2007 —TTLF
Borrowings B& 686,406
Due to associates IRES N R TR 24,906
Bills and accounts payable FE 245 KR FE IR IE 529,078
Other payables and accruals HERMNRIBERETES 60,002
1,300,392
12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 12 WHHERBEEE
Group Company
1] BT
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT B¥ETT BETIT
Club debentures SHES 1,509 1,509 90 90
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13 INVENTORIES 13 58

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Raw materials B 85,333 121,605
Work-in-progress E& 53 2,712 5,662
Finished goods RURY TR 73,284 38,784
Consumables SEAEm 1,245 1,289
162,574 167,340
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and FEKATEREEBILH AEEKAN
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately M& L4048 %7,619,946,0007T (=

HK$7,619,946,000 (2007: HK$5,021,398,000). TELF ¢ #5#5,021,398,0007T) °

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 14 ZRAFEEBESIIBHHESE
OR LOSS

Group Company
E 287
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT B¥TT BETT

Financial assets at fair value RATEEBER

through profit or loss: FIRE B E -
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES
- Hong Kong —&8 36,920 48,302 1 1
— Overseas —84h 3,275 308 - =
Market value of listed securities &% 2 M{E 40,195 48,610 1 1
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value BRATEEABRIIENMBEEND
through profit or loss are recorded in other gains in the TEEE  FEianalEmaixRNETkah
consolidated income statement (see Note 22). Sl ( BHIsE22) ©
At 31 December 2008, equity securities listed in Hong RZZTENE+_A=1+—H  REB
Kong with market value of approximately HK$36,919,000 TR AR AR S S T E 4978 % 36,919,000
(2007: HK$48,301,000) were pledged to secure margin TL(ZE T F : B%48,301,0007T) 2
facility of the Group (see Note 19). AEEFEREERR(RMTE19) -
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their FIBERAE SN FEIBBEAEERET
current bid prices in an active market. B2 EEEETE -
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BEFRE - BERREAR X TEER
Group Company
£H NG
2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT ARTT BT

Bills and accounts receivable ANES R 977,338 898,780 - -
Less: provision for impairment 5 : EUFURE RS
of receivables (3.432) (4,073) = =

Bills and accounts receivable FENEE K eI IRTE

- net (Note (a)) —F 8 (Hita) 973,906 894,707 - -
Loan to a director (Note 33) EREBRMF33) 733 181 = =
Deposits, prepayments and ®e - BAEREK

other receivables HE R 127,667 134,498 432 248

128,400 134,679 432 248

Less: non-current portion of i : EBERK

loan to a director B H (537) - - -
127,863 134,679 432 248
1,101,769 1,029,386 432 248

Notes: s -

(a) The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods (@) AEBTEMEERALTEREF=1H
for sales of goods ranging from 30 days to 120 days. Z—H_tHZERAE  EXEMNEED
Consideration in respect of sold properties is payable by the EMEB B EIEE S QP IEREfT -
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase EYMEHSWARBERZALM -

agreements. Rentals in respect of leased properties are payable
by the tenants on a monthly basis.

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable as at 31 RZZBENF+A=+—8 ' BEKEE
December 2008 is as follows: R FEWOIRIBIRE AT AN -
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within three months =@AR 950,473 886,363
Over three months but within BB =1 A m T EaE
six months 7@ A 23,048 8,492
Over six months but within B E A TR A
twelve months +={@A 1,151 1,466
Over twelve months BB +t—f@EA 2,666 2,459
977,338 898,780
Less: provision for impairment of B RGBS
receivables (3.432) (4,073)
973,906 894,707
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect
to bills and accounts receivable as the Group has a large
number of customers, internationally dispersed.

(b)  Accounts receivable that are less than three months past due
are generally not considered impaired. As of 31 December
2008, the following accounts receivable were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

i

AR e MRS AR Y RE

15 BIRE  BRIRAREEEEX
(%)

Bist - (&)

@ (&)
[EW R R EYRIBY BB AETHNEE
R ARAEEERZEF @ BiHtER
B o

() BHIOR={EAFRKIKRERE TR
RELRE -R-ETN\F+-A=+—
B ATEKREREBMELERE -
IS FIRY K Z (B &AL R B R B Rk
HEZRP o It F IR AR IR 5 1T 20

analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows: T
Group
|
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within three months =@EAR 114,020 132,385
Over three months but within HiE =18 A m Bk
six months 7~ @& A 23,048 7,486
Over six months but within BB E A MBS
twelve months +=1@A 24 -
Over twelve months BiBE+—@EA 452 390
137,544 140,261

(c) Asof 31 December 2008, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$10,000 (2007: HK$93,000) were impaired. The amount
of the provision was approximately HK$3,432,000 (2007:
HK$4,073,000) as of 31 December 2008. The individually
impaired accounts receivable mainly relate to customers, which
are in unexpected difficult economic situations. The ageing of
these accounts receivable is as follows:

Over twelve months HBiE+—EA

(0 EUWIREL AEK1000T(=ZFZT £
& : B¥93,000) R=FTNF+=A
=+ HEKRE R-_ZETN\F+_A
=+—8 ' REEELHAB3,432,0007T
(ZZZT L F : #H%4,073,0007T) ° &5
BB A FE IR 18 = 23R B BR R TR BASME
ERIBEFARE o S RKIRENIRER D

T
Group
SE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
EWTT BT
10 93
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 15 MEWERE - BEWEERETE K

(#&)
Notes: (continued) BisE : (48)
(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts (d) ZANEEREREERERIKRENIRESEE
receivable are denominated in the following currencies: ARG E#E A BN
Group
%E
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
us$ T 873,960 828,025
RMB AR 43,014 19,656
HK$ B 34,000 47,026
EUR BT 22,932 -
973,906 894,707
(e) Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts (e) FENWIRIBREEEEEINT
receivable are as follows:
Group
&=
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At 1 January W—H—H 4,073 6,000
Provision for impairment FEURIRIA
of accounts receivable BB 556 4,093
Accounts receivable RERETEE
written off during the U [0 T i 855 Y
year as uncollectible 7 Lz i TR (1,197) (6,020)
At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—8 3,432 4,073
The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts HE R ERBIRIER AR R ANMEE RS
receivable have been included in general and administrative FEBRRT —MRETHRERNA - L4E4H
expenses in the income statement. Amounts charged to the BRI BRE — RS ER AR E
allowance account are generally written off when there is no FEINR R IFHSH o
expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within bills and accounts receivable do not EREEEERKIRBANEESENRE
contain impaired assets. BEERBEERE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is EREBH  EERBRN RS BBEES
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The L BEERHRHATE AEBTRHE
Group does not hold any collateral as security. ERERERNERD -
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16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 16 BERMITRLE
Group Company
%H 27

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT BT T B¥ETT BT

Cash at banks and in hand RIREFRE 167,241 210,378 765 834
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 194,608 184,400 = =
361,849 394,778 765 834

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 2.97% (2007: 4.21%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 239 days (2007: 220 days).

At 31 December 2007, the Group had bank deposits of
approximately HK$750,000 pledged with the banks in
Mainland China.

At 31 December 2008, pledged bank deposits and
other cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$150,606,000 (2007: HK$146,817,000) are
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in Mainland
China. The remittance of these funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the Chinese Government. Also the exchange

rate is determined by the Chinese Government.

BRI ERNERFRE297E(=F
THF 421B)  ZEEROFHEH
HA239K(—ZTZT+4F : 220K) °

R-_EEL+FE+_A=1+—H8 £8H
SRITIE A8 750,000 T 2
§R1T -

R-ZBEZNE+-_A=+—H8  DEH
BT REECR e MBITEHROSD
¥ 150,606,000 T ( — BT F : B
146,817,0007T) = A A R & E B
WAFRAHP R ZRTT - PBEEHZE
B e R A B BT E 2 INEE
UK o FIFF - EXRBPBIBNERE °

17 SHARE CAPITAL 17 BXE

Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
TR H1{E
(thousands) HK$'000
(5F%r) PR T
At 1 January 2007 RZEZE+F—H—H 1,032,129 103,213
Issue of shares (Note (b)) BT (B17EB)) 80,000 8,000

At 31 December 2007 R-ZBEEL+F+_F=+—8H
and 1 January 2008 rE=—ZFFNFE—HF—H 1,112,129 111,213
Repurchase of shares (Note (c)) B Rt (A at(c) (600) (60)
Issue of shares (Note (d)) BATIR (K777 (d)) 2,000,751 200,075
At 31 December 2008 RZZBENF+ZA=+—H 3,112,280 311,228
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17 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 17 BR&E (&)

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting on 14 August 2008, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased to 3,800 million shares
(2007: 1,800 million shares) with a nominal value of HK$0.1
per share (2007: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully
paid.

(b)  Pursuant to the placing and subscription agreement dated
1 June 2007 and the supplemental agreement dated 4 June
2007, the Company allotted and issued a total of 80,000,000
new shares at a subscription price of HK$1.50 each.

(c) The Company repurchased 600,000 of its own shares of
HK$0.1 per share on the Stock Exchange on 22 January 2008.
The price paid per share was HK$0.61. The total amount paid
for the repurchase of shares was HK$366,000 and has been
deducted from shareholders’ equity. The shares repurchased
were subsequently cancelled.

(d) On 22 June 2008, the board of directors of the Company
announced to propose to raise approximately HK$300 million
before expenses, by issuing up to 2,000,751,226 offer shares
of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“Offer Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per Offer
Share by way of an open offer, in the proportion of eighteen
Offer Shares to ten shares held on the record date (the “Open
Offer”). The ordinary resolutions in respect of the Open
Offer were duly passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 14
August 2008. Completion of the Open Offer took place on 9
September 2008 and accordingly, 2,000,751,226 Offer Shares
were allotted and issued at a subscription price of HK$0.15
per Offer Share. The Company raised a sum of approximately
HK$300 million before expenses through the Open Offer.

Share options

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2002, shareholders of the Company approved
the termination of the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 23 July 1999 (the “Old Scheme”) and
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”). Under the New Scheme, the Company may
grant options to employees (including executive directors)
of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors,
and will not be less than the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of granting
the options and the average of the closing prices of the
shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting the
options.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised
or lapsed during the years ended 31 December 2007
and 2008. No share options were outstanding at 31
December 2007 and 2008.

Bt -

(@ R=ZTZT )\i)\ﬂﬂ'@ﬁ%?ﬂﬁxﬁﬁAﬁ
i@%LJ&%i“ﬁD/AT/ﬁEEHx$i381“
2L F 18R BREEAB
BoNL(=F ti BREEE%0.1
JL) © Fﬁﬁﬂf?ﬁﬂﬁﬂ\i’]ﬁi@%&% o

(b) *EWA_? yti/\ﬂ A2 RE R

Eﬁﬁfj] —? 7t¢/\ﬂ@EluT42

%ﬁ}m’;% ZK’AT&W{J%FHH%MM 50
TCACEE N 38174 ££80,000,0008%  AZ 1D ©

© ARFRZZFEZN\F—A-_+t_BEHX
Fr B [21600,000 8 & AR EE &1 0.1 7T 2 I]
17 o BT SRRER AB%0.617T - BEIRK
15 BT < 48 5878 15 366,000 7T © & B IR 34
IOk - FTEERIRHD R E B -

(d RZFEENFAAZ+=H' ' xRAE
ERAMEBAAREE - mNCEBH
LAY B B (n AT R 1 )\ AR B & AR 15 BY
o) - AR B E AR (D B 0.15 TR IR
B » 175 %2,000,751,226 % &5 -
SREEBE0.107T 2 AR R ([ #E
fo’zﬂ) EEN=EBTRFARZ (A
FREE])  c RZEZTN\F/\A+MBE 8T
ZKAETH&%%EW:@L C BEARRFR
REBLRAZRRIMELRARE - R
EER=ZZN\FNLANATK ° &It -
ARBAFREERDEE0NSTTHRE
& @a%&%ﬁsnz 000,751, zzeﬁﬁf‘%ﬁx
B ARFBEBABBEEEN =BT
(REHFX) ©

MRk

ARRIRZEZE_F/NANH ;-‘ETTZHX
REAFRE FEGREAMERILEAR
R—NAANFEA=ZT+= El%’)ﬂzﬁﬁﬂx
R EI([E5T8)) RE A ERET &
([¥r5t&l]) - BEFETE - AR R AT
TEEZET(BENTES)BREN
RIBARRBI 2D BERR&ZZER
RABIEBEITIRA 2 30% (et ABRTT(E
BEREmEITHRG) - BRZAREES
BEARTE - W AP RIRMHEE - &%
o B IR 2 B A B 22 BT BEE R 2 U T B
EEDBERENAERS B AR
[ FHRME=EF R o

REBEE_ZTLFR-_FT\F+_H
=+—HIEFE - WEERERRL
B TR - R _BELFER—
ZEZN\F+-_A=+—BEBERTEZ
FERHE
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18 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS 18 HERBREZER

Group
£H
Available-
for-sale
Capital  investment
Share Capital redemption revaluation Translation ~ Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve adjustments profits Total
AfLE
BADE #3
RAEE  AXRRE fE  BfiEE  BREREE RIERA a8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ABTr A¥Tr B Tn %t E%Trn  A%Tr BRI

Balance at 1 January 2007  —ETHF—F—AEH 463,171 12,241 11,977 1,117 14,791 353930 857,227

Currency translation BHERE

differences =8

- Group -£E - - - - 17,738 = 17,738

- Associates =N - - - - 6,458 - 6,458
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - 86,307 86,307
Share of reserves of BB E AR

associates 1 - 8,234 - - - - 8,234
Fair value gains on A ER

available-for-sale BER)

financial assets AFENE - - - 523 = = 523
Transfer to profitor loss &M EHE

on disposal of HEEEL

available-for-sale ZERIR

financial assets - - - (1,640) - - (1,640)
Issue of shares BIR G 109,769 - - - - - 109,769
Share issue expenses RN (79) - - - - - (79)
At 31 December 2007 RZZEE+E+-A

=t+—B&# 572,861 20,475 11,977 - 38,987 440,237 1,084,537
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18 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 18 RERBREZEF &)

Group
|
Capital
Share Capital redemption Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve adjustments profits Total
RF¥OR
RIFER BEGE 11 RERE RERA i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tr  ERTR  EWTT @ B%TR  RRTR  ERTR

Balance at 1 January 2008 =T \F—-A—-REH 572,861 20,475 11,977 38,987 440,237 1,084,537

Currency translation BHEY

differences 8

- Group -5B - - - 19,340 - 19,340

- Associates VNG| - - - 6,069 - 6,069
Loss for the year FEEHR - - - - (148,808)  (148,808)
Repurchase of shares B R (306) - 60 - (60) (306)
Share of reserves of ERBE AT

associates i - 2,484 - - - 2,484
Issue of shares FTRR 100,038 - - - - 100,038
Share issue expenses RETRX (10,054) - - - - (10,054)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZN\F+ZA

=t+— A& 662,539 22,959 12,037 64,396 291,369 1,053,300
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18 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 18 HTEBREZRF (&)

Company
AR
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
EXOE
Rip (B #E  #AB&R  RIERA FiE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT ARt BRTR  ARTR BRI

Balance at 1 January 2007 “EEHE-F—RER 463,171 11,977 128,832 9,964 613,944
Profit for the year EEAR = - - 869 869
Issue of shares BTG 109,769 - - = 109,769

Share issue expenses BDETRY (79) - - = (79)

Balance at 31 December 2007  —TFtF+-F=f+—HEH 572,861 11,977 128,832 10,833 724,503

Balance at 1 January 2008 “E2Z\F—-A-B#&EH 572,861 11,977 128,832 10,833 724,503
Profit for the year FEERF - - - 2,104 2,104
Repurchase of shares BERR (306) 60 - (60) (306)
Issue of shares Bk, 100,038 - - - 100,038
Share issue expenses BAEITHEY (10,054) - - - (10,054)
Balance at 31 December 2008 “EEN\F+-A=t—RA&H 662,539 12,037 128,832 12,877 816,285

Contributed surplus represents the difference between BABR TN T 2 EEER AN B
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the RAIZFEERABECEZRE - MARRK
book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries A 3247 AT B ok B [B] Ak (0 B E & AR B [E]
acquired. It can be utilised for issuance of bonus shares 2 o

or for capital redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed BREARE-—NN—FRRE AR

surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium account.

The Company’s reserves (excluding retained profits)
as at 31 December 2008 available for distribution to
shareholders were represented by the contributed
surplus of approximately HK$128,832,000 (2007:
HK$128,832,000).

BA DK - BIOR D IKE - 2
BIREEEEIMERRNEEEZAIE
REEINEEE SBITRARERN
wERZ AN - RNRBTEEE M
BB D IR RER

RZTBENE+—_A=1+—8H " AltH
IR RZ AARBE(TEREREA
F) BB R 4075 #128,832,00070( =
TE 4 #51128,832,0007T) °
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19 BORROWINGS 19 8
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT P IT
Non-current JEMED
Bank borrowings RITEXR 146,467 36,041
Other loans from minority M8 A m) DB R B
shareholders of subsidiaries HEER 4,438 4,275
Finance lease liabilities REHEAE 2,518 4,060
153,423 44,376
Current R ED
Bank borrowings RITEN 432,558 617,814
Other loans under margin HEMETHTER
facilities 9,790 22,051
Finance lease liabilities MEHSEE 1,501 2,165
443,849 642,030
Total borrowings BER 597,272 686,406
Secured borrowings are as follows: BEBEZMAT :
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT P T IT
Bank borrowings SRITER 209,519 222,483
Other loans under margin facilities FFEME FTETER 9,790 22,051
Finance lease liabilities MEREAE 4,019 6,225
223,328 250,759
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$209,519,000 $R1T B 3K %) 5 % 209,519,000L (= F
(2007: HK$95,754,000) were secured by certain T F ¢ ¥ 95,754,0007T ) A ZBH
leasehold land, land use rights, buildings and investment Eti - T AR BFREED
properties (see Notes 6, 7 and 8). Bank borrowings EERKIF(RKIES - 7k8) s R=ZZE
of approximately HK$126,729,000 were secured by tHF+ A=+ —BRITERNBE
properties held for sale and shares and equity interests 126,729,000TC AR E W E R E THER
in certain subsidiaries at 31 December 2007. Finance AR D Mg BRI - MEHEAE
lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the ER EBEAR  ARENMIEERERM
leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default. EEEMERKHEBHEA -
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19 BORROWINGS (continued) 19 8H;#E)

Other loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries
were unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable

within one year.

MEARLERRNEE
- RHERIER—FAL

=)

é“%’( IR
P“wm:

The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows: EEEHWRNEBEMT ¢
Bank borrowings Other loans
MITER HEHE®
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT BETT BT
Within one year —FR 432,558 617,814 9,790 22,051
Between one and two years —E2FR 24,720 14,947 - -
Between two and five years “ERFR 68,623 21,094 4,438 4,275
Between five and ten years AZETFER 53,124 - - =
579,025 653,855 14,228 26,326
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
Finance lease liabilities — minimum FEHEAE— &K
lease payments: MERK -
Not later than one year TiBE—F 1,629 2,485
Later than one year and not BiE—F
later than five years BABBERF 2,727 4,797
4,356 7,282
Future finance charges on MERE ZARK
finance leases EUpE= 035! (337) (1,057)
Present value of finance lease MEHEaECERE
liabilities 4,019 6,225
The present value of finance lease BEAREAEY
liabilities is as follows: IWEWT :
Not later than one year TiBiE—F 1,501 2,165
Later than one year and not BiE—F
later than five years ETNBBRF 2,518 4,060
4,019 6,225
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19 BORROWINGS (continued) 19 ®®(E)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REZEANERMRNT

were as follows:

2008 2007
Us$ RMB HKS EUR Us$ RMB HK$ JPY
E Y IN:3 #T ¥ e ARE BT HE
Bank borrowings RITER 4.7% 7.1% 2.7% 6.3% 7.2% 7.4% 5.3% 2.7%
Finance lease liabilities HEREaE - - 5.1% - - = 6.0% =
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their EREEE(EEE N EMET o
fair values.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are EBEEFNREBESEBUNTNYEE S
denominated in the following currencies: fir
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT P T IT
us$ =TT 263,370 509,708
RMB AR 105,170 82,429
HK$ BIT 197,752 87,728
Other currencies Hp gk 30,980 6,541
597,272 686,406
20 DEFERRED TAXATION 20 ERERIF
The movement on the deferred tax liabilities (net of EEFRIE A G GIREEREEER )Y
deferred tax assets) is as follows: SEINT -
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
At 1 January »—H—H (31,830) (33,226)
Deferred taxation recognised in EEDRERN
the income statement IR IE (35,589) 4,418
Exchange differences VE R ZXE (3,649) (3,022)
At 31 December R+-_HA=+—H (71,068) (31,830)

I 124 Annual Report 2008 4 iy I



© ressmmes ..

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$333,498,000 (2007: HK$291,108,000), which certain
amounts are subject to approval from the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department. These carry forwards will
begin to expire in 2008 for Mainland China and can be
carried forward indefinitely for Hong Kong. Tax losses
can be carried forward to offset future taxable income.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

fre M HRARM T

20 BRIERIA(Z)

BEFSTHAE A ERBTS A=A
BBARRIERT R AN SR ML EeE 2
TRIB1EMERR - AEB B RERTIBLS
# 333,498,000 70 ( — BT+ 4F : H#E
291,108,0007T) * B O FFH B
HEHE - FEIEENERBER =
ST N\FHEBER  MEBNREBLR
BEHEIPR o Bii8 AT A DA 8 R SR FE AR R
A °

FREERAEENARIEFH(EF—
B 2 AR EEAT) a0 T

Accelerated tax Investment
Deferred tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total
BERRERAR mERAEHE RENR it 1]
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT A¥Tr BRI ANTn BRTR A% Tr  #ETR A% Tr
At 1 January ®—A—-AH (785)  (1,382) (35313) (35956)  (9,410)  (8,189) (45,508)  (45,527)
Recognised in the income  EBHERER
statement 160 625  (45,003) 3,252 2,704 (601)  (42,139) 3,276
Exchange differences ERES (6) (28)  (3,304)  (2,609) (443) (620)  (3,753)  (3,257)
At 31 December W+=-A=1+-H (631) (785) (83,620) (35313)  (7,149)  (9,410) (91,400)  (45,508)
Decelerated tax
Deferred tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BERFRE HERFRE it ] e #8
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
BRTT AUt ERTR BT ERTR A%Tr ERTR A% Tx
At 1 January w—A—H 423 418 13,156 11,762 99 121 13,678 12,301
Recognised in the income  EBRHXRER
statement 745 5 5,805 1,167 - (30) 6,550 1,142
Exchange differences ERES 2 - 96 227 6 8 104 235
At 31 December M+=A=+—A 1,170 423 19,057 13,156 105 99 20,332 13,678
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20 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet as

AR e MRS AR Y RE

20 REERIEA(E)

EEEERNTRAEHEARRAEG
BB EES - MEER GRS RA
—HIEUAN - AT BB A AR RE
EBUAR B AREG « it ABE K
% THlR WG A AEAFRALT

AR—FRNER AP EE BET

assets/liabilities not realisable/due within one year: R
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
B%TIT BT TT
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE B 20,054 10,722
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE (91,122) (42,552)
(71,068) (31,830)
21 BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21 BREREMIRER
Ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as ERTRE R EMRERE ST
follows:
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
B%TIT BEETIT
Within three months =@AR 334,400 529,078
Over six months but within BB EA B R
twelve months +=1@AB 1,497 -
335,897 529,078

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

ZRER B 1O FE 5 R4 % B AN R TR B R T <

BATIEESEN

2008 2007

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BRTT PR T

us$ = 291,418 509,418
RMB AR 22,969 18,201
HK$ s e 623 1,459
EUR BT 20,887 =
335,897 529,078
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22 OTHER GAINS, NET 22 HEBKRSBH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Fair value losses on BAFEBHER
financial assets at fair value SR EEZ
through profit or loss NEEE (56,551) (1,377)
Interest income: FEWA :
— on bank deposits —RITER 9,547 5,229
— on other receivables —H e Bl 762 1,059
Fair value gains on AL ENBEE
available-for-sale financial assets  Z A {EWE
(transfer from equity on disposal)  (HERRiEZREA) - 1,640
Dividend income & BURA 727 86
Investment (loss)/income BE(EB) s (45,515) 6,637
Fair value gains on investment EYER
properties RNEER S 13,775 31,243
Gain arising from transfer from FEMEERES
properties held for sale to REME
investment properties FRTEE A 2 Wiz 169,139 =
Gains on disposal of property, MEME - WS REHE
plant and equipment 2 ) 402 240
Dilution gain in an associate /N
(Note (a)) BE WS (ATt @) = 53,031
Loss on deemed acquisition of RS YN NE|
interest in an associate (Note (b))  #EzSEHE (H7:# (b)) (13,537) -
Others HE 17,457 10,657
141,721 101,808
Notes: Hrat -
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group’s equity (@ REBEEZZTTEF+-_A=1+—HLHF
interest in China LotSynergy Holdings Limited was diluted from B BEXZERAERARBITHR A&

(b)

21.75% to 20.14% as a result of the issuance of new shares
of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited. In this connection,
the Group recognised a dilution gain in an associate of
approximately HK$53,031,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s equity
interest in China LotSynergy Holdings Limited was increased
from 20.14% to 20.83% as a result of repurchase of its
own shares by China LotSynergy Holdings Limited. In this
connection, the Group recognised loss on deemed acquisition
of interest in an associate of approximately HK$13,537,000.

ERELIERERARIAELSH21.75% 8
SEE20.14% ° Bhltt - SEREREE QA%
SHUER4)758553,031,0007T ©

RBEE-_ZEN\E+_F=+—8HLHF
B REVERERARBEBERGD @ &A%
B3 A ELER20.14%E N E20.83% °
Bt - SEERRIERARS A RERSE
1B497%%13,537,0007C °
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BMYEESEMNER

SIESHERAN ~ SHERDHERM—K
RITRERANERIIMAT :

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ST IT
Depreciation of property, W - R K
plant and equipment BAEITE
- owned assets —BEBE 10,042 8,790
— assets held under finance —BMEHEEE
leases 1,301 1,464
Amortisation of prepaid BNEERE
operating lease payments FRIE 1,647 1,644
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & A #E § 20 18
Operating lease rentals ZEHERS 9,199 8,633
Employee benefit expense EERAFAX
(including directors’ (BIEESE:)
emoluments) (Note 24) (HteE24) 99,655 71,911
Write-down of inventories to BIEFEERERFEE
net realisable value (BIEREENA)
(included in cost of sales) 67,825 -
Provision for impairment of JEUS bR I8
accounts receivable VERIERE ] 556 4,093
Net exchange (gains)/losses P& 5% (Uas) B 18 (8,160) 369
Auditors’ remuneration ZENRDEN & 880 820
24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 24 EREFIFAX
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Wages and salaries HeIlE 91,393 65,062
Pension costs — defined RIRPEA — R e G E
contribution plans (Note (a)) (K715 (a) 3,943 3,047
Staff welfare BT &H 4,319 3,802
99,655 71,911
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 REEMEXZ)

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Original Scheme”), which
is managed by independently administered funds.
The Group's monthly contributions are based on 5%
of employees’ monthly salaries. The employees are
entitled to receive 100% of the Group’s contribution
and the accrued interest thereon upon retirement
or leaving the Group after completing ten years of
service or at a reduced scale of 30% to 90% after
completing three to nine years of services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after
1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for
these employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the employer’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a maximum of
HK$ 1,000 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at rates of approximately 8%
to 22% of the basic salaries of its employees in
Mainland China, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the
Group's contributions to the aforementioned
schemes was approximately HK$3,943,000 (2007:
HK$3,047,000) after deducting of nil (2007:
approximately HK$86,000) deduction of forfeited
contributions of the Original Scheme.

() Efe—-REHMRR

AEBARERELRYLERSE
VESER R ERKEMKET S
([REHE) - AEEE A 2 HEuR
EE AEH5%tE - REART
Bom T ERBERRARNEE - ES
HE R 22 S B AR E T
FE - TR =ZENF RS AR
30% 290 % L FIIURER ©

rEBAE_ZTEZTF+_A—HE
ABBBREE LD ERHIEATE
satal([®E2FE])  —EEB
VEFEABENREHEKEE - 1B
BB E  AEEREREES
HARBAEGEARSIEH R
T BAKEEFSMS%EN -
EEMEENSEEFIEEAESR
EE & AA%1,0007T °

REBFEDEPIRTE - AREREF
e B2 EEREBHRRGTE -
AEEZEAREEAH SN E
22% K - BRFEEFIN - NEE
BEAERCERERARSMRIE
RERFOEE - BREBHRIK
AEBERMNEREENZEIRE
ERIE-

RER - AEEH Eil st 81D
B AR RE XD B 15 3,943,0007T (=
TEHF : F¥3,047,0007T) °
EMRET(ZZEZLF : 8K
86,0007T) [RET 21 K8 ISR o
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 EEEFPEZZE)
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EERERETEBFM
The remuneration of every director for the year Bz ) \F+-_BA=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2008 is set out below: FE BREEMENDT :
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contribution
and Discretionary  to pension
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
R 1 Eratig
EERE e Ria#l RfE%ke EE L

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#RTT BRTT BRI BRTT BRTT

Executive directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Shing B s - 5,984 3,136 210 9,330
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EBRLA - 2,266 3,450 105 5,821
Mr. YANG Da Wei BAREE - 573 - - 573
Ms. LAU Ting 2Eat - 5,416 2,844 183 8,443
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Bt

Virginia = 1,603 120 74 1,797
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PERLE - 1,549 1,119 Al 2,739
Mr. YIN Mark F %4 - 1,143 380 4 1,565
Independent non- BUFNTES

executive directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREAE 361 - - - 361
Mr. MIAO Gengshu BHELE

(Note (i)) (Hrzt() 23 - - - 23
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BEBELE 264 - - - 264
Mr. SONG Yufang REFEE

(Note (ii)) (Bis(i) 86 - - - 86
Non-executive director ENTES
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael EBFEE 120 - - - 120
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 EEBEARAX )
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EEREREEBFMZ)
(continued)
The remuneration of every director for the year HE—ET+F+—-_A=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2007 is set out below: FE GFRESWENTDT :
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contribution
and  Discretionary to pension
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
e RE RIRGHEIA
BENS ik RAEH| BiE#e EEHR oE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
ABTT AT AT ABTT AR

Executive directors HTES
Mr. CHAN Shing B S = 6,760 1,600 250 8,610
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BRRLE = 2,149 632 98 2,879
Mr. YANG Da Wei BAREE - 536 = = 536
Ms. LAU Ting 2Eat - 3,870 1,500 108 5,478
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Effat

Virginia - 1,556 116 72 1,744
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam SERELE = 1,406 195 65 1,666
Mr. YIN Mark FUEE = 1,099 63 40 1,202
Independent non- BUERIES

executive directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE 344 - - - 344
Mr. SONG Yufang RES A 120 - - - 120
Mr. HUANG Shenglan ERERAE 251 - - - 251
Non-executive director FaTES
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael PETEA 120 - = - 120
Notes: Hiat
(i)  Appointed on 8 December 2008. i) R-ZEZENF+-_ANBZRE-
(i)  Resigned on 18 September 2008. (i) MZEENFNAT/\BEHIT -
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 EERMEXZ)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (00 AISEEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four (2007:
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments

AEREEREHMNALALE
B (Z2TEF : Of)ES -
IR F B L X 2RO ITH R
MR- AT —IES  JEHFAL

payable to the remaining one non-director, highest HEBNN T ¢
paid individual are as follows:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Salaries, allowances and e EZBEREHN
benefits 1,532 1,186
Discretionary bonuses [N 3,200 864
Employer's contributions to  iRIREHEIREE K
pension scheme 70 55
4,802 2,105
25 FINANCE COSTS 25 MERF
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Interest on: B :
— Bank borrowings wholly —RAEFREHEEDN
repayable within five years |ITEK 50,881 58,385
— Bank borrowings not wholly —TERAEFAEE
repayable within five years EERRITER 2,172 =
— Other loans —HEEX 705 672
— Finance lease liabilities —EHEARE 249 442
54,007 59,499
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26 TAXATION 26 Mg

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries established in
the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Subsidiaries of
the Group in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China enterprise income tax ranging from 12% to 25%
(2007: 12% to 33%) on their taxable income determined
according to Mainland China tax laws. Other overseas
taxation has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

The amount of taxation recognised in the income
statement represents:

ANEA B EREREEE T —~
FoREBRLZEERY 2K BRG]
PREABEREESER - BBFEH
BT ETEAER RGN 2 165%(=F
TLEF 175%) B o REBRFPEH
ZHIBRARBRRPBETCEMSH @ &
R AT E R AT TS 212% £ 25%
(ZETLF  12%E33%);tE - EE
INIBR AT E AR R FAE
BRAERBER B ETE -

RIERRERZT2NT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
Current taxation RERIE
- Hong Kong profits tax — BB S 8,730 =
— Mainland China taxation — b B I8 1,157 401
9,887 401
Under/(Over) provision in MEERETE,
prior years (EBEEEE)
- Hong Kong profits tax — BB S 23,148 =
— Mainland China taxation — R fiIE 953 (3)
24,101 3)
Deferred taxation relating to iR T 18 T By
the origination and reversal of ZENESE
temporary differences Kz E 35,589 (4,418)
69,577 (4,020)
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26 TAXATION (continued)

27

VAN
AR A

26

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the taxation rate of the home country of the Company as

follows:

R 755 R R B R

WA (&)

AEEAMBRTA(ER), BRI 2 HE
HEERARNABAANLER ZHEMmET
HZIERBBZERNT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT IT

(Loss)/Profit before taxation KR (EE) & F (35,326) 91,251
Calculated at a taxation rate B E16.5%

of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) ZTTEF 17.5%)THE (5.829) 15,969
Effect of different taxation HE o BERNEE

rates in other countries B 16,784 1,486
Effect on opening deferred T 2R Rk K T HA 4

tax of decrease in tax rates EERIB & 41 (10,322)
Income not subject to taxation BT Z WA (820) (18,564)
Expenses not deductible for LIk

taxation purposes 2 35,960 556
Unrecognised tax loss REERR I8 9,937 8,526
Under/(Over) provision in AFEEREEIR

prior years (iBzERE) 24,101 3)
Recognition of previously EREARERER L

unrecognised temporary TREER

differences (2,157) -
Utilisation of previously FREAIARAER

unrecognised tax losses Z T (10,387) (446)
Others "y 1,947 (1,222)
Taxation 18 69,577 (4,020)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF 27 ZFATHSEBEAEGEERT

THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of a profit of approximately HK$2,104,000

(2007: HK$869,000).

ERAR R RE R 2 AR E) s
A AR BT ZERF 78 %2,104,000
TT(ZZ2ZTLF : B#869,0007T) °
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28

29

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are calculated
by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

VAN
AR A

28

R 755 R R B R

Sk(ER) 27
EXRME

FREAREE(ER) BMNBEAD
FERFEA ARG (ER) & - BRI
FABRTE AR MNEFHEE &
=

2008 2007

(Loss)/Profit attributable to ARA)EZFE A

the equity holders of ek (E518), /& F

the Company (HK$'000) (BT T) (148,808) 86,307
Weighted average number of BT T AR hnfE

ordinary shares in issue FEE(FEH (EF))

(thousands) (restated) 1,750,769 1,120,776
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings FRERRES(BE) B

per share (HK cents per share) (BFRAL) (8.50) 7.70

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 December 2007 was restated and adjusted
for the effect of an open offer of 2,000,751,226 shares
completed in September 2008.

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.
DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007:
Nil).

29

HE-_ZTZ+E+-_A=1+—HItEE
ZBEBITERRG 2 NEFHEBEEE
P ABRUARBR=_ZZNFNATK
NFIEEEEE1T72,000,751,226 8 2 £ -

ARARBE-TTLFR-TINF
+Z A=t BLLERE DTS
TR -

B2
EERTHEBEE_ZTNF+_A

=+ —BEFERMRBBRS(ZTEL
FE)o
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 30 S4B &RE XM

(a) Cash (used in)/generated from operations () BE(FA) EEHRE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
B%TIT BT TT
(Loss)/Profit for the year FEE(EE) &f| (104,903) 95,271
Adjustments for: A -
— Tax — I8 69,577 (4,020)
— Depreciation —IrE 11,343 10,254
— Amortisation — 1§ 1,667 1,662
— Gains on disposal of property, —HEE « #E2 K
plant and equipment B =Pl (402) (240)
— Fair value gains on —RBEYENR T ERE
investment properties (13,775) (31,243)
— Gain arising from transfer —FEDFERE
from properties held KEMZE
for sale to investment FrEE 7 W
properties (169,139) -
— Fair value losses on financial —EAFEEBERD
assets at fair value SR EE 2 N F
through profit or loss BEE 56,551 1,377
— Dilution gain in an associate — BN BB - (53,031)
— Loss on deemed acquisition St UN NG|
of interest in an associate M E e 13,537 -
— Fair value gains on — A EMBEE
available-for-sale Z A AR
financial assets - (1,640)
— Dividends received from —EUR A FEFER
financial assets at fair BRI IR A B 7
value through profit BERE
or loss (727) (86)
— Interest income — FlE WA (10,309) (6,288)
— Finance costs — R E AN 54,007 59,499
— Share of losses/(profits) — RS AR
of associates (&F) 196,866 (30,211)
— Effect of foreign exchange — IS BE R E) v o 2
rate changes (740) 7,757
103,553 49,061
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
— Inventories —1z8 4,766 (9,598)
— Properties held for sale —FEYHE - (2,213)
— Bills and accounts receivable —EE IR KR EW RIS (79,199) 187,384
— Deposits, prepayments — &%  EAREE TR
and other receivables (105) (40,629)
— Bills and accounts payable — FEZEiE & FEIRIE (193,181) (119,917)
— Other payables and accruals —EpEMAREREFER 8,986 33,640
Cash (used in)/generated from 2iB(A), EENEe
operations (155,180) 97,728
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AR e MRS AR Y RE

(continued)
(b) Disposal of a subsidiary

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement entered
into on 20 November 2006, the Group disposed of
71% equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary
to a third party at a consideration of approximately

30 REReRERMEE)

(b) HEMEBAF

BER-ZZF+—A=1+H
SRR E R AEEEE—
2EMBARIZTI%ERFTE=
% BN ARY61,651,0007T °

RMB61,651,000. Details of the disposal were as WEEEZERMT ¢
follows:
HK$'000
BT
Land use rights T R 8,446
Property, plant and equipment I - 2 MR 45,695
Inventories T8 54
Accounts receivable JFE Ui T 11,712
Deposits, prepayments and e BNRRETERGK
other receivables 18

Cash and bank balances e RIRITAER 12,365
Accounts payable FEAT IR IE (1,519)
Other payables and accruals HeBHIREREER (933)
Net assets FEE 75,838
Less: Remaining interest retained W AEERBHR T =

by the Group (21,993)
Net assets disposed HEZFEE 53,845
Gain on disposal of interest in S BB A R & 2 s A

a subsidiary 4,832

Consideration, net of direct expenses EHBEERSZKE 58,677
Satisfied by: XA
Cash consideration received in 2006 —ETERFEMRESRE 56,516
Cash consideration received in 2007 —ETLFENRSRE 2,161
Total R 58,677

Analysis of net cash inflow in respect of disposal of

HEMBRARNBRSRAFED

a subsidiary: #r
HK$'000
2007 ZTT+F BETT
Cash consideration received EYER S RE 2,161
Net cash inflow in respect of disposal HEWNE AR
of a subsidiary WREMAFEE 2,161
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 30 fSaH&RERME &)
(continued)

(c) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash (0 HEeRBaSEDESIR
equivalents
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ST IT
Cash at bank and in hands WRITEREFRS 167,241 209,628
Non-pledged short-term REZXBRE=B@AUTZ
bank deposits with AR BRI TER
original maturity of
less than three months 144,312 73,833
311,553 283,461
(d) Major non-cash transactions (d) EEIREEH
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the R_EE+F+-_A=+—HR
Group entered into finance lease arrangements SEMNEERRRERBEELD
in respect of machinery with a total capital value B 4,187,000 Z 2R ET S B &
at the inception of the leases of approximately THEZHE -
HK$4,187,000.
31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 RiERBREARE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BFFFRIE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ST IT
Contracted but not provided B 25 4918 R &
— Machinery — 2 16 48
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31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 31 &IBRBRBE &)

(b) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is (b) BEHERIE-—FEFESEEA
the lessee
At 31 December 2008, the Group had future R-TEENEF+—_A=+—H &
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BIRE AT s 2 2B AEmMN &
cancellable operating leases as follows: R HERESMEZEzENT
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Not later than one year TBBE—F 5,129 8,836
Later than one year and not  —%&F1&/8
later than five years NBBRF 257 4,272
5,386 13,108
(c) Operating leases — where the Group is the lessor (0 BEHE-FEESHAA
At 31 December 2008, the Group had future R-ZBEFENEFE+—_A=+—H ' &
minimum lease payments receivable under non- EFERBEAOAENLEREMR
cancellable operating leases as follows: KRR 7 KA ERBETE
™
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Not later than one year TNBBE—F 13,500 14,737
Later than one year and not e —F
later than five years BTHBEBASE 17,758 20,808
31,258 35,545
No contingent-based rents recognised in the income HE—EEN\F+-_A=+—HIt
statement for the year ended 31 December 2008 FE - WENEREERARXAES
(2007: HK$52,000). ZEEF  Bk52,0007T) °
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31

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

AR e MRS AR Y RE

31 RKigRBARARE)

(d) Corporate guarantees (d) AFRE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Guarantee for general BEENRERITRVE
banking facilities granted YEH 2 &R
to an associate 21,730 21,730
Guarantee for general REEERITRE
banking facilities granted B Z R
to a supplier 23,400 -
Guarantees given to banks ABEBYEREEE
for mortgage facilities RIBE M MIRTT
granted to the buyers of ER Z B IR
the Group's properties 2,107 3,200
47,237 24,930

(e)

(f)

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

At 31 December 2008, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts to buy a maximum amount of
US dollar of 60,000,000 (2007: US$102,000,000)
and to sell a maximum amount of US dollar of
7,000,000 (2007: Nil) against Hong Kong dollar.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land
appreciation tax amounted to approximately
HK$30,009,000 (2007: HK$28,989,000).

(e)

(f)

EERR LAERN—RERKB
BRTEELEARE  MAKHE
PRt A RHER < RFEMEDN o

ERSMES

R-ZEENF+_A=+—8 ' &
EEREITHRBINES OEER

% 780& A 60,000,000F T ( ==
T+ 4F : 102,000,000%7T) & E H
7,000,000 T (Z ST LF : )
AT -

BRAR

R-BZENFE+-_A=+—H &
EERBPH T IRERORARE
%) /575 #30,009,000T (—EZE +
4 : 75#28,989,0007T) °
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32 CHARGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2008, the following assets were
pledged:

(a) Certain leasehold land, land use rights and
buildings with a net book amount of approximately
HK$113,982,000 (2007: HK$116,623,000);

(b) Certain motor vehicles and machinery with a net
book amount of approximately HK$5,905,000 (2007:
HK$8,676,000);

(c) Certain investment properties of approximately
HK$449,942,000 (2007: HK$91,224,000); and

(d) Certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of equity securities listed in Hong Kong with
market value of approximately HK$36,919,000
(2007: HK$48,301,000).

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

(a) Related party transactions which were carried out
in the normal course of the Group’s business are as
follows:

Rental income received from B UEE<E AT HSUA
associates

Management income received B UsEEL QTSR A
from an associate

Service income received from B2 Ui A TR U A
an associate

Sales to an associate HE THE QA

Purchase from an associate AN R EE

Sales of financial assets to mEtES N L EMEEE
an associate

Rental expense paid to EffEERAREEAX

an associate

32

33

HEEH

R-_EBEZNF+_A=1+—H '  UTE
EE T

(@) ZMEELH - LHEREREST
R T /B 49,75 %5 113,982,000 ( —
TTHF : B%116,623,0007T)

(b) HEP1n B R K 22 0R M F(E 4B K
5,905,000 C( —EE L F : B
8,676,0007T) :

(0 EPini% & W) % 4978 # 449,942,000
TT(ZZFZ+F : #H#91,224,000
Jo) &

d) HRELATFEEBEZIRAGY
BEEND A LEMBEEFMELBE
36,919,000 C( — T T+ F : B
48,301,0007T) ©

(Lo )

PIBEREALT AN ERIEE
EHlm—07 KBNS — T W
MEERRITEEAFENZIAL - [
B WS AT ARERRERY
B2 ANTTHEAREREAL -

(a) HEE—MEEGERTET.Z BEH
AR ¢

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
1,072 687

- 50

365 342
1,733 1,987
97,889 -
- 800

960 160
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation to key management personnel

R

33 MBAERHE)

(b) EEEEBARHMSE

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Wages and salaries ﬂéIﬁ 26,650 18,658
Pension costs — defined IRIRER A — REHFGTE

contribution plans 685 633

Staff welfare BT &R 2,933 2,824

30,268 22,115

(c) Details of loan to a director of the Company,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

() REBRREHIE161BIERMAREL
REEERZFHEWT

Name of borrower YIN Mark

BRALE FHiT

Position Executive Director

21V HWITES

Terms of the loan

,\//\pi |\EE
— interest rate 4% per annum 5% per annum
—F = FRME FRAE
— security unsecured unsecured
— AR A
— repayment term 4 years 3 years
—BRFH tEes =%
— borrowing date 26 March 2008 15 August 2005
— & H “FEENF=ZA=-+"B ZTZERFNA+HH

Balance of loan in respect of principal and interest

EREE KT SR
—at 31 December 2007 Nil HK$181,000
—-RZZEELFF+A=1+—H s 75 #181,0007T
—at 31 December 2008 HK$733,000 Nil
-RZEENF+=A=+—H 75 #£733,0007T i

Maximum balance outstanding during the year HK$879,000 HK$181,000

FAZRDHRNE

7B #879,0007T

75 #181,0007¢
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Schedule of Properties held for Investment & & ¥ — & &

Address
ik

Unit 8, 26/F, Units 1 and 12,

28/F, North Tower, Hong Kong Plaza,
No. 282 Huaihaizhong Road,

Luwan District, Shanghai, China

o 549

A 28255

BB EI51CE2618

8F  28E1ENI2E

Block No. 0521, Elegant Garden,
No. 189, Longxi Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, China

FEEERER

BRRFE 18957

BA%65I12205215%

537 Wenchang Road Central,
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province,
China

RETIARS

BT

N EH 53755

Lease

HHESR

Medium lease

R EAREAY

Long lease

KA

Medium lease
AR ERTEAY

Existing use

BRiTHZ

Residential
(E=c

Residential
F=

Commercial

[GES

Group's
interest

wEED

100%

100%

69%
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Five Years' Financial Summary T F 81 751 &

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEBBREARYEFECXE EERE

financial years are as follows: BT -
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT BRTT BRI EBTT EBTT

Results ]

Sales HE 8,334,596 5,452,012 4,793,364 3,696,566 4,142,871
Gross profit e 223,221 143,233 82,072 74,645 175,712
Operating profit BERT 215,547 120,539 223,680 158,266 67,135

Profit/(Loss) attributable to: 5 &R/ (E8)

- Equity holders of —ARAERFEA
the Company (148,808) 86,307 149,380 72,745 34,991
- Minority interests — DR RS 43,905 8,964 2,295 6,040 4,807
(104,903) 95,271 151,675 78,785 39,798

Assets and liabilities EERAE

Non-current assets ERBEE 994,984 960,434 800,609 595,725 447,135
Current assets FEEE 1,669,053 1,675,757 1,653,449 1,538,323 1,466,018
Total assets BEE 2,664,037 2,636,191 2,454,058 2,134,048 1,913,153
Non-current liabilities EFEARE 244,545 86,928 170,160 324,198 55,545
Current liabilities MEEE 950,171 1,297,295 1,279,679 934,612 1,038,516
Total liabilities wma 1,194,716 1,384,223 1,449,839 1,258,810 1,094,061
Total equity miERs 1,469,321 1,251,968 1,004,219 875,238 819,092
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